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DIRECTORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS 

The Board of Directors of Technology Upgradation and Skill Development Company 
(Your Company) is pleased to present the Annual Report along with the audited financial 
statements for the year ended June 30, 2021 . 

1- TUSDEC OVERVIEW 

The establishment of TUSDEC came about as an implementation of Eng ineering Vis ion. The 
company was incorporated in 2005 as a Not-for-profit, guarantee limited company, a 
subsidiary of PIDC (Pakistan Industrial Development Corporation Pvt. Ltd.). The Objective of 
the company is to promote and establish Technology Up-gradation Centers and Skill 
Development Centers by establishing I providing common facility, design, support and 
maintenance, testing, certification, incubation, applied research, dissemination centers and I 
or any other institution deemed necessary for up-gradation I assimilation /streamlining I 
acquiring technology, however the Company shall not itself set-up or otherwise engage in 
industrial or commercial activities or in any manner function as a trade organization . TUSDEC 
is established to up-grade and transfer technology in industrial sector(s) relating but not 
limited to agro processing, chemicals, plastic, glass, metal, ceramics, auto motives, 
consumer durables and mining for introducing latest machinery therein so that production 
capability can be brought at par with international standards. 

Since its inception, TUSDEC has absolutely fulfilled all of its strategic commitment aligned to 
the vision of building prosperous Pakistan. Over the years, TUSDEC has implemented 
numerous projects of Federal and Provincial Government, International Donors and also 
collaborated with local NGOs and CSR (Corporate Social Responsibility) Wings to implement 
large-scale development initiatives in diverse areas like TOM (Tools Dies and Moulds), Digital 
Product Design & Engineering, Ceramics, Cement and Garments industrial clusters . 
Cognizant to the dichotomy of manpower abundance and prevalent economics crises 
trickling down in the form of raging impoverishment in the country, TUSDEC is emphasizing 
on vocational skill development of vulnerable communities. The company is also pursuing 
many TVET (Technical, Vocational Education & Training) initiatives focusing at the capacity 
building of marginalized women thereby enabling them to mitigate the socioeconomic 
adversaries. 

The countries surfing in the global limelight have adopted knowledge management as an 
element to build and uphold their competitive advantages. Accomplishment of knowledge 
directs the achievement of national aspirations and builds on national integrity. TUSDEC has 
synchronized its visionary streams with the enlightened goals of Government of Pakistan 
aimed at building a National Skill Base. In collaboration with Federal and Provincial 
Governments, various international donors and local nonprofit organizations, TUSDEC has 
been striving to shift the TVET mechanism of Pakistan from a supply driven to a training 
system that is compelled by the industry's demand for skill in the curricula, training 
methodologies and foremost the areas of tra ining. From train ing the managers, machine 
workers and acute product design engineers to employable skills disbursement for vulnerable 
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groups, TUSDEC has successfully carried through each strand of industrial support. 
Interpolating the service profile, the company has broadened the ambit of its operations by 
implementing TVET reform projects of the Delegation of European Union in KP, FATA Sindh 
and AJK. 

Since its very outset, TUSDEC is continued to record its efforts and accomplishment across 
the country. From the grand-scale interventions of technological upgradation, basic and 
advanced technical skills dissemination to the vocational training and capacity building of the 
modest communities, TUSDEC has followed through a myriad of project amounting to PkR 4 
Billion. Each initiative has testified the company's contribution in hauling up the progression 
of national economy. 

Public Sector Development programme (PSDP) is the most important fiscal policy tool to 
achieve socio economic targets as envisaged in the Vision 2025 by channelizing scarce 
public resources to projects having complementary and crowding in impact on economic 
activities . Ultimate goal of the spending under PSDP is to further strengthen physical and 
social infrastructure to put our country on sustainable and high growth trajectory. 

The year under review was the 16th operational year of your Company in which three 
projects, namely NIDA (Lahore, Quetta & Sialkot) completed 151

h years of successful 
operations. The other two NIDA Centers (Karachi & Peshawar) have completed 14th years 
of operations . SkiiiTech Karachi has completed 11th year of its operational activities. 
Gujranwala Tools Dies and Moulds Centre (GTDMC) has completed 11th year while 
Ceramics Development and Training Complex (CDTC) has also completed 11th year of its 
operational activities. Cement Research and Training Institute (CR&DI) has completed 
15th year of its operational activities. A detailed report on the achievements of your Company 
during the year is given as under: 

Financial Performance: 
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20 

Income 121,429,556 1 09' 1 05' 14 7 

Expenditures before depreciation and amortization 134,955,422 141,706,126 

Deficit before depreciation and amortization (13,525,866) (32,600,979) 

Depreciation and amortization 74,188,969 113,760,371 

Deficit after depreciation and amortization (87,714,835) (146,361 ,350) 

Cost recovery(%) 89.97% 77% 

2- Technology Upgradation Centers (TUCs) 

i) Gujranwala Tools Dies and Moulds Centre (GTDMC) (Operational) 
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Gujranwala Tools, Dies and Moulds Centre (GTDMC) is modern engineering centre which 
provide training, Consultancy, design, machining and manufacturing services to the local 
industry. 

A brief table of operational results for the year 2020-21 is as under: 

Type of Job No. of Jobs (2020-21) 

No of Industrial Jobs 
76 Jobs (Heat Treatment, Mold and Die 

Making & 30 Scanning) 

No. of participants trained (PSDF, 239 Trainees 
NAVTTC etc.) 

ii) Ceramics Development and Training Centre (CDTC) (Operational) 

The fundamental aim of CDTC is to upgrade the ceramics industry specifically the sanitary 
ware sector with integrated engineering solutions, contemporary mach inery, latest 
technology, Laboratory for testing facilities of ceramics raw materials and process control. 

A brief table of operational results for the year 2020-21 is as under: 

Type of Job No. of Jobs (2020-21) 
415 Jobs (Shuttle Kling, CNC 

No of Industrial Jobs 
Pattern Making & 

Consu ltancy) 

Laboratory services 336 Samples Tested 

Training of Trainees (PSDF, NAVTTC etc.) 24 

iii) Cement Research and Development Institute (CR&DI) (Operational) 

After up-gradation and revitalization of the CR&DI laboratory and building, the laboratory 
started functioning under TUSDEC management and control in January 2006 . Minor 
renovation activities were carried out and separate physical lab was established to maintain 
temperature. 

PC-1 for renovation of existing facility and the transformation to modern laboratory was 
submitted earlier to PIDC, however due to delay, TUSDEC has submitted PC-1 for approval 
to planning commission for consideration under PSDP, as one of the components in 
"National Strategic Program for Acquisition of Industrial Technology" (NSPAIT), which is 
expected to be approved in the FY 21-22. 
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During the financial year 2020-21 , CR&DI conducted 1229 tests and earned revenue of Rs. 
7, 928,677/-. 

CR&DI is successfully conducting test on American Cement Standards, European Cement 
Standards, Sri Lanka Cement Standards, Indian Cement Standards, Pakistan's latest 
Standards for common & Masonry Cements for testing and has also initialized compressive 
Strength of Concrete & Fire Bricks Crushing Strength & Chemical Analysis of Silica fumes, 
Fly Ash and Slag, Cylinder testing, Concrete Expansion testing and Testing of Dolomite. 

CR&DI credibility has been acknowledged by: 

34 Consultants 
92 Construction Firms 
29 Cement Factories 

Since inception CR&Dl generated revenue amounting to Rs. 64.37 million and tested 10,370 
number of samples. 

Engineering Support Centres (ESCs) 

TUSDEC is running 03 Engineering Support Centres including Hyderabad Engineering 
Support Centre, Light Engineering Upgradation Centre for SMEs in Baluchistan and 
Peshawar Light Engineering Centre 

• The centres are facilitating the local industry with modern design, training and 
Consultancy services to local industry 

(iv) Peshawar Light Engineering Centre (PLEC) Rs 296.53 Million 

• 46 Jobs (456 Parts) performed on different machines 
• 70 participants trained in various technical trades under NAVTTC PMYSDP 
• Training to 50 tra inees is in progress under various tra ining program 

(v) Light Engineering Upgradation Centre for SMEs in Baluchistan (LEUC) Rs 
264.8 Million 

• 62 Jobs (403 Parts) performed on different machines 
• 40 tra ined and training to 201 tra inees is in progress under GIZ - TVET Support 

Programme and NAVTTC. 

(vi) Hyderabad Engineering Support Centre (HESC) Rs 276.105 Million 

• 83 Jobs (398 Parts) performed on different machines 
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• Training to 130 completed and 270 trainees is in progress under various training 
program 

3- Skills Development Centers (SDCs) 

a) Donors Funded Initiatives: 

i) GIZ "Technical Skills Development in Sindh & Baluchistan" (In Progress) 

598,946 Euro (34 Months Duration - 645 Trainees) 

TUSDEC signed agreement with GIZ for Technical Skills Development in Sindh and 
Baluchistan. Due to COVID 19 the training activities suffered. After detailed discussion with 
TVET SSP Team, operational plan revised with changes in trades, duration and overall 
trainee target. Main Activities of the Project are as under: 

• To impart training to 645 trainees (465 males and 180 female) jointly with the 
partnering enterprises using cooperative vocational training approach for demand 
driven trades 

• To encourage CBT delivery and assessments in line with the Baluchistan Sector Study 
• To promote and strengthen the engagement of private sector in training design, 

coordination and delivery, leading to employment. 

In this project NIDA Quetta, SkiiiTech Karachi, Hyderabad Engineering Support Center 
(HESC) and Light Engineering Upgradation Centre (LEUC), Hub is conducting CBT based 
trainings. 

b) PSDP/PIDC/PSDF Funded Initiatives: 

i) Skill tech International Karachi- (PIDC Funded) Rs. 22.5 Million (Ongoing) 

TUSDEC established SkiiiTech International Karachi in 2009 through funding from PIDC. The 
centre started its operations in April 201 0. The centre aims at equipping the youth with 
international level technical skills to enable them to compete in national and international job 
markets. The centre provides various short technical courses in specified engineering fields 
and also provides vocational and management trainings. The centre also prepares students 
for various exams of City & Guilds UK in Pakistan. 

The centre has provided tra inings to the corporate sector and students from engineering 
universities as well. The list includes some of the prestigious organizations like SUPARCO, 
Pakistan Air Force, Pakistan Navy, Maritime Technologies Islamabad, Pakistan Refinery, 
Amreli Steel, lucky Cement, Thai engineering etc., The students from different universities 
like NED University of Engineering & Technology, Sir Syed University of Engineering & 
Technology, NUST, Bahria university. DAWOOD college of Engineering, Indus University and 
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Mehran University of Engineering also attended the courses. Many students from technical 
institutes have also attended our trainings to enhance their skills so they can compete in local 
and as well as international market. 

SkiiiTech International Karachi has also secured Punjab Skills Development Fund (PSDF) 
project to train workforce in Electrical, Electronics and Industrial trades in City & Guilds UK 
certified curriculum. SkiiiTech International Karachi has also executed TVET programs given 
by BBSYDP & NAVTIC. 

Due to a fast and cut-throat competition in the Karachi market, the centre is implementing 
multi throng marketing strategies and offering trainings in high tech and basic TVET courses. 
Since its inception SkiiiTech has trained around 3,834 students in more than 80 different 
courses/trades. The centre has trained 250 students during the year under review. SkiliTech 
has been merged into TUSDEC vide PIDC notification dated August 20, 2018. Around 240 
students are trained in 10 courses under GIZ funded project. 

ii) National Institute of Design & Analysis (NIDA) (Advanced CAD/CAM) Centre Rs. 
321.12 Mill ion (Operational) 

NIDA Centres are providing basic to advanced courses applicable in various industry 
segments wmechanical , electrical, automation, civil, plant, process, garment, fashion, 
jewellery etc., incorporating the academic aspects together with social interaction during the 
training. NIDA training facilities are flexible and technologically advanced learning 
environment is provided that are safe, healthy, comfortable, aesthetically pleasing and 
accessible. NIDA centres have lab rooms, licensed software and office equipment that are 
essential for a modern training centre. NIDA (Eight (8) Advanced CAD/CAM training centers), 
the project was initially approved for 3 years as per PC-I to establish five (5) CAD/CAM 
centers in Lahore, Karachi, Sialkot. Peshawar and Quetta under management of TUSDEC in 
the first phase. NIDA Centres at Lahore, Quetta and Sialkot have successfully completed 
their 15 years of operations; Peshawar & Karachi have started their 14th year of operations. 

These centres were planned to teach 'Design' rather than commercial software training and 
impart skills of critical importance to help Pakistan's industry move to the other side of the 
digital divide. CAD/CAM Centres also design and develop courses on internationally 
renowned design softwares to make full use of existing "proven" technologies and offers 
reasonably priced justifiable, supportable costs to its clients/students . CAD/CAM technologies 
not only reduce the time to design & produce quality, but also enhance the capacities of 
Pakistani skilled manpower & increase their competitiveness. 

NIDA Lahore is also offering the Reverse Engineering Services to the local industry by 
providing 3D scanning, part designing and 3D modelling services. During the reporting year, 
contracts were also signed with National Vocational and Technical Training Commission 
(NAVTTC). Students certified by CAD/CAM Centres are working in different sectors of 
Industry and providing valuable services to the industry of Pakistan . Many of them are 
working aboard and sending precious fore ign remittance to Pakistan . 
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After completion of funding from the Government, PC IV of the Project was submitted to the 
Planning Commission and the Project has been merged with TUSDEC after obtaining 
approval from the relevant forums. A brief table of operational results of five NIDA Centres is 
as under: 

PARTICULARS Completed 151
h year of Completed 14th year of TOTAL 

Operations Operations 

Lahore Quetta Sialkot Karachi Peshawar 

Courses Conducted 504 234 444 267 856 2,305 

Student Passed Out 3,515 3,341 3,757 3,855 5,926 20,394 

Reverse 3,734 - - - - 3,734 
Engi neering/Desig ni ng 

Services 

iii) a) Industrial Triangle Programme (ITP-2019-20) (PSDF Funded) Rs. 50.46 Million 
(Completed on 30-3-2020, Exams conducted in September 2020) 

Tq produce skilled workforce; TUSDEC offered practical training programs in collaboration 
with PSDF in Light Engineering sector at GTDMC & CDTC Gujranwala . The trades include: 
Clay Body and Glaze Making, Auto CAD, CAD CAM, CNC. Programming, CNC 
Maintenance, CNC Machine Operator, CNC turning Centre operator, CNC Machinist, CNC 
Operating.135 students at GTDMC & CDTC successfully trained. The project has improved 
the livelihood prospects of the trainees through certified qualifications and better job 
prospects at the national and international sphere. 

b) Industrial Triangle Programme (ITP-2021} (PSDF Funded) Rs. 10.79 Million 
(Completed on 31-3-2021) 

To produce skilled workforce; TUSDEC offered practical training programs in collaboration 
with PSDF in Light Engineering sector at GTDMC Gujranwala. The trades include: 
CAD/CAM and Digital manufacturing for Product Design, CNC Programming setup and 
operations. 4 classes comprising of 66 students has successfully completed the course. The 
project has improved the livelihood prospects of the trainees through certified qualifications 
and better job prospects at the national and international sphere. 
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4 - Current Projects 

a) Government funded: 

i) Industrial Designing & Automation Centers (IDAC) Rs.972.97 Mn 

In the modern era of Industry 4.0 revolution, Pakistan is still lagging behind in this arena due 
to social-economic challenges. The country is facing slow growth rates of output and 
exports due to small levels of investment, technical inefficiencies and low R&D resulting in 
lower productivity and uncompetitive industries. Major reason of low economic growth is 
decline in manufacturing sector of Pakistan being the backbone of Pakistan's economy. 

Foreseeing the future demand of design and automation technologies of local industries and 
develop strong manufacturing base of Pakistan, TUSDEC developed PC-I for establishing 
"Industrial Designing & Automation Centres (IDAC)" in Lahore, Sialkot & Karachi to support 
local industries. These centres include Rapid Prototyping, designing and automation labs to 
support local industry through industrial jobs including Reverse Eng ineering using 30 
prototyping, scanning and designing; automation using embedded systems, PLC kits, 
SCADA, DCS and offering high end technical trainings. 

The objectives of these centers are: 

• Provide designing services through 30 Laser Scanner facility 
• Provide ready to use prototypes through 30 Prototyping facility 
• Automation of industrial processes of key clusters 
• To give local industries demonstration effect about latest technologies how 

automation and 30 prototyping can improve their manufacturing processes and 
enhance their research and development 

• Improve labor and manufacturing process efficiency to compete in the local and 
international market 

Current Status: 

• Administrative Approval of Project rece ived on March 04, 2020 
• 02 Kanalland for the IDAC Lahore centre has been procured as per PPRA 

Rules in the Quaid-e-Azam Industrial Estate (QAIE) Lahore 
• Construction consultant (MIS Hassan Associates) has been hired as per PPRA 

rules 
• Design has been completed and approval of design has been given by 

concerned authority (QAIE) 
• Tender documents, evaluation criteria, construction drawings, BoQ and 

Estimate has been prepared by the consultant for hiring of civil contractor for 
the Lahore Centre 

• Tender Ad for civil contractor at Lahore has been published in the newspaper in 
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October 2021 and will be opened on 251

h October, 2021 for selecting the most 
advantageous bidder 

• Tenders for land of Karachi and Sialkot advertised, and procurement is in 
process 

ii) Footwear Cluster Development through CAD/CAM & CNC Machining PKR 78.7 
Mn 

In pursuance of its mandate of upgrading technology and skills of key industrial clusters , 
TUSDEC developed PC-I on "Footwear Cluster Development through CAD/CAM & CNC 
Machining" to support footwear sector. 

TUSDEC's project "Footwear Cluster Development through CAD/CAM Centre, Lahore" 
approved in CDWP in May, 2019 with a total cost of Rs.78.69 Million. TUSDEC had started 
implementation and the project will contribute to national economy through 

900 product design & development job 
1600 trainees 
Value Addition of worth Rs . 214.42 Million 

The proposed facility will be located in existing building of TUSDEC/NIDA. 

Current Status: 

• Tender regarding "Supply of software, I.T equipment & machinery for footwear 
Project" has been completed and I.T equipment including desktop computers for 
Footwear Designing Lab, Shoe Master Designing softwares, 3D Scanny and 
Digitizer have been delivered and successfully installed 

• Construction/renovation of Footwear Lab and Workshop has been completed. The 
lab has been constructed and workshop for the machinery has been renovated by 
the supplier 

• Procurement for CNC 5 Axis Machine has been completed 
• Tender for the procurement of remaining machinery for the footwear project has 

been published in Newspaper and technical proposals have been opened on 21 51 

October, 2021 for selecting the most advantageous bidder(s) 

iii) Industrial Technology Benchmarking Project (Feb 2018 - Onward) Rs. 36.34 
MiJiion (Project Handed Over to PIDC) 

PC-II of Industrial Technology Benchmarking approved by DDWP of MoiP worth Rs 36.34 
Million. Initiative involves Technology Benchmarking of 2 priority/selected sectors viz a viz 
regional/global competitors in order to identify the technology gaps in these potential sectors 
to create a basis for technology acquisition in Pakistan. 

The proposed study will facilitate in addressing the need of technology advancement for the 
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Surgical and Cutlery sectors. These sectors will be supported in entering high value markets 
through engagement of experts for identification of demand based & value-added products 
and subsequently develop workable proposals I PC-1 s for catering medium to long term 
requirement of these potential sectors for technology up-gradation: Lending programs to 
support industries, establishment of CFCs & Incubation centres, technical consultancy and 
Joint Ventures etc. 

TUSDEC hired the consultant through international competitive bidding to carry out the 
benchmarking study. The experts of consultants engaged local industry through meetings, 
Focus Group Discussions (FGDs) and Interviews to form a technical working group of 
stakeholders from both sectors representing local industry, public sector organizations I 
departments and academia. The consultant(s) I experts assessed the state of local industry 
and identified a range of high value products that can be produced. The consultants along 
with working group also finalized the list of high value products from each of these sectors. 

Based on the findings I recommendations of the working group and associated experts, PC-
1 s will be developed to assist the potential sectors for entering the high value market. 

Current Status: 

• PI DC requested to shift the project to PI DC for direct implementation 
• Project has been handed over to PIDC after signing of addendum agreement with the 

hired consultants and PIDC 

iv) National Strategic Programme for Acquisition of Industrial Technology (NSPAIT) 
Rs. 3,206.86 Mn 

TUSDEC has developed "National Strategic Programme for Acquisition of Industrial 
Technology (NSPAIT)" in close coordination with the stakeholders in order to "Acquire, 
assimilate and improve the technology being used in various industrial sectors across 
Pakistan tentatively in the following critically important industrial sectors including Textiles 
(with particular ref. to Technical Textile), Construction (including Cement, Ceramics, and 
Marble & Granite) and Engineering & Technology (Including Light Engineering, Cutlery and 
Gems & Jewellery)". TUSDEC selected these sectors based on the fact that Textile being the 
key sector with 59.43% share in overall exports but Pakistan lacking in technical textile and 
sportswear products in world export share (World Technical Textile Market: US $ 192 Bn , 
Pakistan Share: US $ 0.250 Bn) due to unavailability of testing laboratory, R&D, waterless 
dyeing technology and skilled workforce as per initial research and consultations with textile 
sector stakeholders/experts. Similarly, construction is a high growth sector and Engineering 
sector of Pakistan is a potential growth sector presently having only 1% global export share 
due to low technology base and manufacturing of low-end products while the share of 
engineering sector in world trade is around 55%. 
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TUSDEC developed "National Strategic Programme for Acquisition of Industrial Technology 
(NSPAIT)" in coordination with "PM Task Force on Technology Driven Knowledge Based 
Economy". The project of NSPAIT was presented in CDWP held on 18th November 2019. 

According to the Minutes of CDWP the PC-I was approved to the extent of Feasibility study at 
a cost of Rs. 89.974 Mn. and it was recommended to initially conduct a 3rd party feasibility so 
that the need identified in the PC-I could be validated and accordingly updated version of PC­
I could be resubmitted. 

The project will contribute to the national economy through 

Output 
• Industrial Jobs Completed 446,029 (Total Parts /pieces 8, 711769) 
• Industrial Testing Services 27,283 
• Direct Employment Generated 102 
• Number of Trainees 12,965 

Impact 
• New Enterprises 409 
• Indirect Employment Generated 3, 788 
• Number of Trainees 12,965 
• Value Addition Rs. 6.4 Bn 
• Import Substitution Rs. 450 Mn 
• Increase in exports Rs. 18.7 Bn 

Current Status: 

NSPAIT- Feasibility Study: 

• Project of of National Strategic Programme for Acquisition of Industrial 
Technology (NSPAIT) was principally approved however its feasibility 
component was approved in the CDWP meeting held on 18th November. 2019 
whereas its administrative approval and expenditure sanction was granted on 
24th December 2019 and funds were received in May 2020. 

• Subsequently three (3) experienced and competent consultants were hired 
through competitive process to undergo the feasibility study 

o NJHR Pvt Ltd, 
o GAT Consulting (Pvt) Ltd. 
o In Consult (Pvt) Ltd. 

• The studies on 12 interventions were completed and the outcomes were 
incorporated in the PC-I for deliberation of CDWP. 

Pre COWP Held on 29th June 2021 
• Decision: The project was returned to sponsor with the direction to rectify 
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/modify the PC-I in light of the findings of feasibility Studies of the project and 
keeping in view the observations of I&C Section reflected in the working Paper 
and this form 

Consultative Meeting Held on 12th August 2021, 
• Decision: It was decided that the project will be modified in light of the above 

directions/observations. The last intervention i.e "Establishment of UNIDO 
assisted Investment and Technology Promotion Office (ITPO)" will be excluded 
from the project and cost will be rationalized accordingly. Modified PC-I along 
with feasibility studies and power point presentation will be submitted to M/o 
PD&SI for reconsideration in the 2nd Pre CDWP 

• Final version of PC-I based on 10 interventions was developed worth Rs. 
3,206.86 Mn and submitted to MoPD&R. The CDWP meeting is awaited. 

(V) Support Centre for Dental and Surgical Implants (SCDS) 720.345 Million Rs. 

Pakistani surgical industry specifically related to surgical and dental implants does not 
hold its footprint anywhere in global market. After conducting several surveys and 
feasibi lity study, Technology Upgradation and Skill Development Company (TUSDEC) 
clearly revealed a strong need for surgical and dental implants to fill supply and demand 
gap through precision of latest product designing and development faci lity along with 
shifting towards industrial intelligence of 41R through automation. 

To address this design and manufacturing of high precision and sensitive products related 
issues of Pakistan's surgical sector, Technology Upgradation and Skill Development 
Company (TUSDEC) proposes to establish Support Centre for Dental and Surgical 
Implants (SCDS). 

The project was approved by the DDWP forum at a total cost of Rs. 720.345 Million 
dated July 9, 2021 and the administrative approval was received on August 13, 2021 for 
the establishment of the centre in Sialkot. 

Current Status: 

• The Project assignment account opened 
• Tender for procurement of 03 Kanal Land advertised in Newspaper 
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b) Donor Funded: 

i} "Kamyab Jawan Prime Minister Youth Skill Development Program" 

a) TUSDEC qualified for NAVTTC "Kamyab Jawan Prime Minister Youth Skill 
Development Program" Cohort A. Training started in February, 2020 but the training 
program suspended in March 2020 due to COVID-19 and resumed on September 
2020 and concluded in March 2021 . Training has been imparted to 100 students at 
GTDMC, 70 at NIDA Peshawar, 40 at LEUC, 50 at PLEC & 60 at HESC in various 
trades. 

b) TUSDEC qualified for NAVTTC "Kamyab Jawan Prime Minister Youth Skill 
Development Program" Cohort B. Training started in June 2021. Training is being 
imparted to 150 students at GTDMC, 25 at CDTC, 50 at NIDA Peshawar, 75 at LEUC, 
50 at PLEC & 60 at HESC in various trades. 

5. Other Proposed Initiatives 

PSDP Initiatives 

i- Industrial Technology Acquisition Policy (ITAP) 

To bring a systematic approach for developing Pakistan's technological capabi lities. TUSDEC 
drafted "Industrial Technology Acquisition Policy" in order to benchmark, acquire, 
assimilate and improve the technology being used in various industrial sectors across all 
major clusters of Pakistan. This draft national level policy proposes following interventions to 
upgrade Pakistan's industrial technology; 

• Technology Upgradation Fund (TUF} 
• 50 Technology Up-gradation Centers (TUGs) 
• 33 Technology Incubation Centers (TICs} 
• 33 Skill Development Centers (SDCs) 
• 45 Joint Ventures (JVs} 
• Establishment of Regional ITPO Offices 

Rs 40 Bn 
Rs 21 Bn 
Rs 7 Bn 
Rs 7 Bn 
Rs 40 Bn 

The total size of pilot phase is Rs. 115 Billion where Rs. 80 Bi Ilion will be private sector 
investment and government share will be Rs. 35 Billion. The expected outcomes of the policy 
are; 

• 59,543 beneficiaries 
• 27,732 new enterprises 
• Rs. 350 Billion increase in exports against 35 Billion investment by Government 
• 108,064 employment generation 
• 27,000 value added jobs 
• 45 new JVs 
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Initially in year 2021-22, approval of Industrial Technology Acquisition Policy will be sought in 
order to implement policy for developing manufacturing base of Pakistan leading towards 
sustainable industrial development. 

ii. Federal Institute of Homologation (FIH) 

The quality, conformity and safety of the industrial products play a major role in worldwide 
supply chain. Currently, in Pakistan there isn't any 3rd party Product I parts testing facility to 
homologate products according to international standards and therefore the local industries 
have to rely on the manufacturer claims. The proposed facility of "Federal Institute of 
Homologation (FIH)" will provide services in testing, certification and accreditation for 
industrial product from development of prototypes and pre·tests, to product monitoring and 
potentially the FIH Certification Mark. 

FIH envisions a three-pronged strategy to facilitate the local industry aiming to enter lucrative 
global markets. It will be providing product and parts testing facilities ; personnel training 
focused on product/system improvements to get international certifications and facilitate 
certification acquiring processes. As per the demands of many countries that products should 
conform to national , regional or international quality I safety standards such as UNR, FMVSS, 
GTR, ASTM, UL, CE, BSS, JIS, GB, GSO, etc. FIH aims to provide proof of conformity with 
these standards through independent and accredited product testing and certification. 

Trainings 

Develop skilled work force to identifying skills and technique in testing through providing 
professional and vocational trainings to enhance productivity and quality to comply with 
international standards like ISO, CE, UL etc 

Project Cost, Project life & HR 

Rs. 950 Mn (Capex: Rs. 700 Mn, Opex: Rs. 250 Mn) 
• 1-year execution & 3 years operations for demonstration 
• 100 persons HR 

Impact/ Value Addition 
In three years of operation, approximate output of FIH will be 

• 1,500 Product/Part testing and composition jobs will be performed for 
manufacturing industry 

• 100 + industries will be assisted in capacity building on Product/Part testing, 
composition mechanism, Standard identification and international standards 
certification 

• 150 International quality Accreditations will be granted through technical support 
• Exports will be enhanced 
• Imports will be substituted 
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iii. Construction Machinery Support Center (CMSC) (PKR 850 Mn.) 
Construction Machinery Support Center (CMSC) will provide technical trainings to engineers , 
drivers , technicians, industry professionals and marginalized youth on heavy construction 
machinery. Proposed initiative will address the existing gaps of construction sector with 
emphasis on Human resource development in context of CPEC and HR export leading to 
foreign remittance. 

Proposed initiative of CMSC will address the existing gaps of construction sector with 
emphasis on southern region of Pakistan. These centers will work as catalyst in boosting 
economy through 

• Improved construction quality and 
• HR export leading to increase in foreign remittance. 

The centers will serve in following 

• Heavy Construction Machinery (HCM) availability such as Tower Crane, Crane, Excavator, 
Bulldozer, Dump Truck Road Roller. Breaker, Grader etc. to facilitate small contractors. 

• Provide repair and maintenance services to HCM service providers 
• Advisory role to industry in machinery handling and techniques. 

The center will provide professional and vocation trainings such as Heavy Vehicles operation, 
Heavy Vehicle repair and Maintenance, Surveying and Monitoring techniques etc. leading to 
HR export facilitating foreign remittance. 

Project Cost, Project life & HR 

• Rs. 850 Mn (Capex: Rs. 500 Mn, Opex: Rs. 300 Mn) 
• 1-year execution & 3 years operations for demonstration 
• 40 persons 

Impact/ Value Addition 

In three years of operation, approximate output of CMSC will be; 

• 3000+ Trainees (Machinery Operations and Maintenance) 
• 300+ Supervisory/Renting/ Maintenance services 
• Foreign remittance will be increased 
• GDP will be improved 
• Government Revenue will be boosted 
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PSDP+ Initiatives I Public-Private Partnerships Initiative: 

i. Naphtha Cracker Complex (NCC): 

In order to meet the requirements of local petrochemical industry, plastic industry, other allied 
industries and play a role in raw material import substitution, TUSDEC Proposed the concept 
of Naphtha Cracker Complex (NCC) facilitating the chemical sector development in Pakistan. 
The NCC will facilitate the different industries in Pakistan in context of CPEC development 
sector through raw material import substitution . 

Current Status: 

• TUSDEC has developed PC-II to conduct formal feasibility study which can be utilized 
for Govt. funding, Multilateral & Bilateral Funding or Inti. JVs 

• On direction of DC-PC, Member Energy convenes a meeting with Petroleum division, 
Private Associations and MoiP. 

• In the meeting it was endorsed that the need of Naphtha Cracking Complex 1s 
inevitable. 

• Modified PC-II was submitted to MoiP on the basis of Member energy meeting 

Electronics Complex Lahore 

TUSDEC aim to develop Electronics complex to support electronic manufacturing services 
(EMS) as well as provide training in mass production techniques to the local manpower. The 
state of the art centre will provide modern design and manufacturing solution to electronic 
industry. 

Current Status: 

• TUSDEC has developed PC-II to conduct formal feasibility study which can be utilized 
for Govt. funding, Multilateral & Bilateral Funding or Inti. JVs 

• On the direction of DC-PC, a meeting was conducted with National Institute of 
Electronics (NIE) to discuss the need of electronics complex in Pakistan 

• Modified PC-II was submitted to MoiP on the basis of inputs provided by NIE and other 
stakeh ol de rs 

6. OPERATING RESULTS 

Your Company has a net Deficit of Rs. 87.39 million for the year 2020-21 as compared to net 
deficit of Rs. 146.36 million in 2019-20. 

The key financial figures have been tabulated as follows 
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Year Ended June 30, 2021 J Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Rupees 

(Deficit)/ Surplus} before Tax (87,714,835} (146,361,350} 

Taxation 

Current Year ~ ~ 

Surplus/(Deficit) after Tax (87,714,835)* (146,361 ,350) 

EARNING PER SHARE 

Basic (Loss)/ earning per share come at Rs (3.66) Year 2020: Rs. (6.13) 

*Reason for Deficit 

Deficit for the year under review include the major impact of depreciation on fixed assets of 
the company. 

DIVIDEND 

Your Company is a non~profit organization and all surplus earned would be employed by your 
Company to meet its objectives. The Securities and Exchange Commission Pakistan while 
granting license u/s 42 of the Companies Act, 2017 has also required that no payment would 
be made to the members; therefore, your Company is not required to declare any dividends. 

OUTSTANDING STATUTORY PAYMENTS 

There are no outstanding payments due on account of taxes, duties, levies and charges 
except the current year tax liability and amounts of normal and routine nature. 

PROVIDENT FUND 

The Company has maintained an employee provident fund and investments out of provident 
fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the Companies Act, 
2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose. 

7. MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

During the year, two meetings of the Board of Directors were held. The two meetings were 
not held due to spread of COVID~ 19 pandemic in country and non-availability of quorum. 
Attendance by each Director at the board meeting is as under: 
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S.#. Name Eligibility Attended 

Non-Executive Directors: 

1 Joint Secretary, Ministry of Industries and Production 2 1 

2 Secretary I Joint Secretary, Ministry of Finance 2 2 

3 Chief Executive Officer, SMEDA 2 1 

Independent Directors: 

4 Mr. Rana Nasir Mehmood 2 2 

15 Mr. lftikhar Ahmad Jogezai 2 1 

6 Mr. Nooruddin F. Daud 2 -

7 Dr. Mohammad Aslam 2 1 

8 Prof. Dr. Younis Javed 2 -

Executive Director: 

9 Chief Executive Officer, TUSDEC 2 2 

The Directors who could not attend a Board Meeting were granted leave of absence in 
accordance with the law. 

8. PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING 

The pattern of shareholding as at June 30, 2021 is annexed to the Annual Report 

HOLDING COMPANY 

Pakistan Industrial Development Corporation (Private) Limited has 99.99% holding of the 
company. 

9. FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK: 
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• The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company present fairly 
its state of affairs, the result of its operations, its cash flows and its changes in equity. 

• Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained 

• Appropriate accounting policies have been applied in preparation of financial 
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent 
judgement 

• International Accounting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan , have been followed in 
the preparation of financial statements and any departure therefrom has been 
adequately disclosed 

• No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of your 
Company have occurred between the end of the financial year to which this balance 
sheet relates and the date of the Directors' Report 

• The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively 
implemented and monitored 

• The Board recognizes its responsibility to establish and maintain sound system of 
internal control, which is regularly reviewed and monitored 

• The appointment of chairman and other members of Board and the terms of their 
appointment along with the remuneration policy adopted are in the best interests of the 
Public Sector Company as well as in line with the best practices 

• The Board has complied with the relevant principles of corporate governance, and has 
identified the rules that have not been complied with, the period in which such non­
compliance continued, and reasons for such non-compliance 

• There are no significant doubts about the company's ability to continue as a going 
concern 

• key operating and financial data of last six years has been summarized 

10. AUDITORS 

The present auditor's M/s HYK & Co, Chartered Accountants retire and being eligible, offer 
themselves for re-appointment. 

11. AUDIT COMMITTEE 

The Audit Committee is comprised of following Non-Executive Directors. The Chairman of the 
Committee being an Independent Director 
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• Mr. lftikhar Ahmed Jogezai 

• Ms. Saira lmdad Ali 

• Representative of Ministry of Finance 

• Dr. Mohammad Aslam Khan 

• Mr. Nooruddin F. Daud-(Tamgha-i- lmtiaz-Civi l) 

12. Key Financial Data 

SIX YEAR FINANCIAL OAT A (Rupees in Millions) 

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 

Assets 
Non-current assets 1,013.90 163.31 276.09 383.57 24.55 34.91 
Current assets 1,120.00 954.08 808.53 771.92 581.45 536.17 
Equity and liabilities 
Share capital and reserves 
Share capital 238.83 238.83 238.83 226.25 150 150 
Share deposit Money - - - 12.58 - -
Merger Reserve 504.87 504.87 504.87 504.87 - -
Surplus on revaluation of 926.84 2.68 3.99 5.78 - -
Accumulated deficit (664.57) (577.90) (432.85) (277.25} (134.73) (103.71) 

1,005.97 168.48 314.84 472.23 15.27 46.29 
Non-current liabilities 1,061.44 884.17 712.06 653.22 578.27 481.19 

Current liabilities 66.49 64.74 57.72 30.04 12.31 43.54 
Revenue 121.43 109.1 137.48 91 .51 250.04 231.97 
Operating expenditure 209.14 255.46 286.71 262.38 283.52 268.18 

I(Deficit)/Surplus (87.71) (146.36) (149.23) (170.87) (33.48) {36.21} 

13- ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

The Board of Directors places on record its appreciation of the support of the shareholders, 
Government agencies and other parties . 

The Board would like to express their appreciation for the excellent services and the efforts 
being rendered by the executives and staff members of your Company. 

~ 
Chief Executive Officer 

l 
...._ ---

Date: 20 November 2021 
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Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Members of Technology Upgradation and Skill Development Company 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Technology Upgradation and Skill 
Development Company (the Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 

30, 2021, and t he statement of income and expenditure, statement of comprehensive income, the 
statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year t hen ended and notes to the 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 

information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best 
of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

statement of financial position, the statement of income and expenditure, statement of comprehensive 
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes 
form ing part t hereof conform with t he accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and 
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 {XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and 

respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2021 and of the 

loss, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {ISAs) as applicable in 
Pakistan . Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 

accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan {the Code) and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence 

we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 

included in the annual report, but does not include t he f inancial statements and our auditor's report 

thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 

form of assurance conclusion t hereon. 

In connection wit h our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 

statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears t o be materially misstated. 
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements 

of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017} and for such internal control as rna nagement determines is 

necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error. 

ln preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 

going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reaso~able assurance about whether the finar:cial statements as a w11cle are 

free from materia! misstatem:2nt, ·::h•.::ther d~c ~o froud or ~rror, and to i:;sue a:1 auditor's r~!)crt t:;at 

inciudes our opinion. Re<Jsonable ass: . .~rance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
z:udit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions 

of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment 
and maintain professional skeptic:sm throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of mat~rial misstatement of the financial statements, w:1ether due to fr<Jud 

or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obt<::in audit evidence that i:; 

su_fficient and appropriate to. prcv,ic;;:- a b<!sis br cur cpinjon. The risk of no~ detecting ~ r.-:aterl;::l 

misstatement resulting from fraud i .~ higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 

collusion, forgery, intentional ornissions, misreprese:1tations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internai control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the drcumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of the Company's intern31 control. 

• Eva:Jat<= tl:e approprlatenes$ of 2.::coun1i.1g policies t::>ed and the rcasoneili!eness of <JC:C0LJn:.ir.g 

estimates <:!'ld reiNed disc:l0s<..:res ~>:~~ !:-; m£n<~semc!'l~. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management'<; u~:e of the going concern basis of accou:-~ting and, 

based on the 2udit e•:!dence obtni:.~d, wheth.er ;: materi<1! uncertainty exi:.ts re!a!ed to event-; o,· 
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conditions that may cast significant doubt on t he Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to 
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. 
However, fut ure events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including t he 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fa ir presentation. 

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit . 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion: 

(a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX 
of 2017); 

(b) The statement of financial position, the statement of income and expenditure, statement of 

comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with 
the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are 
in agreement with the books of account and returns; 

(c) Investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during t he year were for t he 
purpose of the Company's business; and 

(d) No zakat was deducted at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980). 

The financial statements of the company for the year ended June 30, 2020 were audited by another firm 
of chartered accountants who expressed an unmodified opinion dated November 21, 2020. 

The engagement partner on the audit result ing in th is independent auditor's report is Younus Kamran. 

Chartered Accountants 
lahore 

Date: November 20, 2021 

lahore Office: 
321 Upper Mall . lahore. 
Phor:e: 92 42 3575 5530 
Pho~.e 92 42 3578 9331 
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Islamabad Office: 
House No. 4, Street No 60 
F-7f4 Islamabad. 
Pr,one 051 265 4334 



TECHNOLOGY UPGRAOATION AND SI<ILL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
(A Company registered under section 4 2 of the Co mpa nies Act, 2017) 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
ASAT30 IUNE2021 

ASSETS 
Non-current assets 
Property, plant and equipment 
Intangibles 
Long term deposits 

Current assets 
Projects assets 
Trade debts 

Stores and spares 

Short term advances 

Short term advances deposits and prepayments 
Other receivables 

Short term investments 
Tax refunds due from the gove rnment 

Cash and hank balances 

TOTAl ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Share capital and reserves 
Author·ized share capital 
135,000.000 (2020: 135,000,000) ordinary 

shares of Rs. 10/- each 

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capita l 

Merger reserve 
Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment 

Accumulated deficit 
Total Equity 

Non-current liability 
Deferred grant 

Current liabilities 
Trade a nd other payables 

Lease Liabilities 
Project liabilities 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Contingencies and commitments 

Note 

5. 

6 
7 

8 
9 

10 
11 

1£ 
13 
14 

15 

16 
17 

Hl. 

19 

20 

21 

22 

1,007,337,155 
2,253,750 
4,311.240 

1,013,902,145 

969,959,845 
9,988,702 

11,875,766 
776,575 

2,464,565 

15,205,821 
20,796,425 
88940,UO 

1,120,007,839 
2,133,909,984 

1,3 50,000,000 

238,830.000 
504,865,626 
926,844,273 

(664 569 545) 
1,005,970,354 

1,061,444,866 

50,293,432 
325,600 

15,875,732 
66,494,764 

2,133,909,984 

The annexed note> from 1 to 38 form an integral part of the!:>e financial St<ltements. 

~2 v 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

157,826,550 
746,021 

4,732,528 
163,305,099 

845,187.476 
12,465,457 
12,314,900 

510,753 
1,925,762 

189.358 
15,291,758 

19,829.558 
46,370,840 

954,085,862 
1,117,390,961 

238.830,000 
504,865,626 

2,679,044 
(577,896 784) 
168,477,886 

884,173.105 

48,461.361 
325,600 

15.953,009 
64,739,970 

1,117,390,961 



TECHNOLOGY UPGRADATION AND SKILL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
(A Company regis tered under section 42 of the Companies Act, 2017) 
STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 

Income 

Income from services 

Amortization of grant related to income 

Cost of services 
Operating cost 
Projects expenses 

Expenditures 
Admi nistrative and ge neral expenses 

Selling expenses 

Other income 
Deficit before taxation 
Taxation 
Deficit for the year 

Note 

23. 

24 

25 
26 

27 
28 

29 

30 

79,669,015 
34,636,033 

114,305,048 

81,885,074 
32,497,265 

114,382,339 
(77,291) 

93,565,830 
1,196,222 

94,762,052 
(94,839,343) 

7,124,508 
(87,714,835) 

(87,714,835) 

The annexed notes from 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial stt~tements. 

cb~ 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR 

78,507,849 
24,822,624 

103,330,473 

122,450,118 
25,044,242 

147,494,360 
( 44, 163,887) 

106,819,225 
1,152,912 

107,972,137 
(152,136,024) 

5,774,674 
(146,361,350) 

(146,361,3502 



TECHNOLOGY UPGRAOATION AND SKILL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 

(A Company registered under section 42 of the Companies Act, 2017) 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 

..._ __ R2_uo.:..Pz_e~_s _ ___.I ... I __ R_~..:o~-~o-es _ __, 

Deficit for the year 

Other comprehensive income: 
Items to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods 

Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequen t periods: 

Transfer from surplus on revaluation of fixed assets on account 
of incrementa l depreciation 

Total other comprehensive income 

Total comprehensive income for the year 

(87,714,835) (146,361,350) 

1,042,074 1,318,838 

- -
-

1,042,074 1,318,838 

(86,672,761) (145,042,51 2) 

The annexed notes from 1 to 38 fo rm an integ ra l pa rt of these financial state ments. 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
-~ 

I RECTOR 



TECHNOLOGY UPGRADATION AND SKILL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 

(A Compan y registe red under section 4 2 of the Compa nies Act, 2017) 

STATEMENT OF CASH fLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3 0 JUNE 202 1 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Deficit before taxation 

Adjustment for non cash items: 

Interest income 
Depreciation o n property, plant and equi pment 

Amor tizatio n on intangibles 
Amortizat ion of defer red grant 

Trade debts writt en-off 

Cash used before wo rking capital changes 

Changes in working capital 

Decrease I (increase) in trade debts 

Decrease I (increase) in stores and spares 
Decrease in other receivables 

Increase in sho rt term adva nces 

(Increase) I decrease in short term prepayments 
Increase in projects assets 

Increase I (decrease) in projects liabilities 

Increase in trade and other payables 

Cash used in operat ions 

Interest income received 
Taxes paid 

Net cash used in operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Additions in long term deposits 
Interest income received 

Net cash used in investing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Gra nt received 

Net cash used in financing activities 
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents a t the beginning of the year 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

Note 

5 

6 
24 

19 

(87,714,835) 

(1,245,758) 

73,4 64,888 
724,081 

(34 ,636,033) 

-
38,307,178 

( 49,407,65 7) 

2,476,755 

439,134 

189,358 

{265,8 2 2) 

(538,803) 
(124,772,369) 

(77,277) 

1,832,071 
(120,716,953) 

(170,124,610 

421,288 

1,039,9 3 7 

1,461,2 25 

211,907,794 II 
211,907,794 

42,277,54 2 
61,370,839 

103,648,381 

The annexed notes from 1 to 38 fo rm an integral part of these t1nancia! statements. 

~~~ 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR 

(146,361,350) 

(3,316,581) 
112,984,130 

776,241 
(24,822,624) 

-
85,621,166 

(60,740,184) 

15,91 2,000 

560,328 

179,273 
1,741,242 

1,397,736 
(184,087,974) 

(822,308) 

6,748,189 
(158,371,514) 

(219,111,698 

(972,910] 
3,024,823 

2,051,913 

196,933,038 

196,933,038 
(21,228,467 

82,599,306 
61,370,839 



TECHNOLOGY UPGRADATION AND SKILL DIWELOPI\H:NT COMPANY 

(A Company registered under section 42 of the Companies Act, 2 017) 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

fOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 

Issued 

subscribed 

and paid-up 

ca_l)ital 

B;llance at 01 July 201 Y 230.830,000 

Incremental depreciation charge 

Total comprehensive income 

Balance at 30 june 2020 23U,830,000 

Incremental deprectation charge 

Revaluation surplus for the year 

Total comprehensive income 

Balance at 30 )un~ 2021 230,830,000 

Surplus on 
Accu mulated 

Revaluation or 
{dellcit} I 

Property Plant 
Merger Reserve 

surplus 
<Jnd Equipment 

···-· ····-··· ···-····· Rupees ···•·•••·•••·•·•·•·•·· 

(432,854,272 ) 3,997,882 504,865,626 

(L3Hl.838) 

(145.042.5 12) 

{577,696,764) 2,679,044 504,865,626 

(1,042,074) 

925,207,303 

(86,672.761} 

( 664,569,545) 926,844.273 504,865,626 

The annexed notes from 1 to 3!l form an Integral part of these flnancial statements. 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

314,839,236 

(1.318.83U) 

(145.042.512) 

160,477,086 

(1,042.07<\) 

(86,672,761) 

80,763,051 



TECHNOLOGY UPGRADATION AND SKILL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
(A Company registered under section 42 of the Companies Act, 2017) 
NOTES TO THE FI NANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 

1. CORPORATE AND GENERAL INFORMATION 

1.1 The company and its opera tions 

Technology Upg1·adation and Skill Development Company (TUSDEC) or ("the Company") is a company, limited by 
guarantee having ~hare capital, incorporated in January 2005 and licensed under section 42 of the repealed 
Companies Ordinance, 1984 (Now Companies Act, 2017). 

The principal activity of TUSDEC is to upgrade technology and skills of key and strategic industrial clusters and 
connect Pakistan to the global va lue chain. 

TUSDEC is majority owned subsidiary company of Pakistan Industrial Development Corpora tion (Private) 
Limited (PIDC). 

Geographical location a nd addresses of all business units are as follow; 

S.No. Offices 

Registered Office 

ii Division unit 
iii Division unit 
iv Division unit 
v Division unit 

vi Division unit 

vii Division unit 

viii Division unit 

ix Division unit 

X Division unit 

Amalgamation 

Addre:;ses 

State Cement Cor poration Building Ko t Lakhpat Near Race Club, Lahore. 

More Ema nabad Opposite Custom Intelligence Offi ce 
Near Co mmander Ceramics 12-KM Kamoki, Gu jranwala Pa kistan 

Sialkot By Pass Chowk, Sialkot Road Gujranwala. 

1st Floor Sarhad Chamber of Commerce & lndustryG.T Road Peshawar. 

Owais Ahmad Ghani Research Cente Buite ms Takatu Campus 
Air por t Road Quetta 
University of Sialkot 1 Km Main Daska Road Sialkot. 
Plot# A-19 Small Industrial Estate Extension Tando Muhammad Khan Road 
Hydra bad. 
Plot# 134-6, CECOS Industrial Liaison Center Hayatabad Industrial Estate 
Peshawar 
Plot# N-10 A at sector N, Hub Industrial & Trading Estate (H!TE) 
Hub, District, Lasbella Baluchistan 
National Inst itute of Design & Analysis (NIDA-Karachi) 
Estate Cement Guest House Building Main Stadium Road Dalmia 

During the year e nded June 30, 2018, there was nmalgamatio n of Gujranwala Tools, Dies a nd Moulds Centre 
(GTDMC) and Ceramics Development a nd Training Complex (CDTC) into Technology Upgradation and skill 
Development Company at its meeting held on july 18, 2017. 

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 

Financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the approved accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan. Accounting and Reporting sta nda rds applicable in Pakistan Comprise o f: 

(a) International rinancial Reporting Standards (fFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board 
(IASB) as are notified under t he Companies Act, 2017 and 

(b) Provisions and direct ives issued under the Companies Act, 2017. 

Wherever, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the !FRS Standards, 
the provisions of and directives issued under the Compa nies Act, 2017 have been followed. 

3 . BASIS OF PREPARATION 

3.1 Thc~e financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for property, plant 
and equipment which arc stated at revalued a mounts as mentioned in note 5. 



TECHNOLOGY UPGRADATION AND SKILL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
(A Company registered under section 42 of the Companies Act, 2017) 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 jUN E 2021 
3.2 FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY 

These financial statements <Ire presented in l'al< nupee. wluch is Company's functiona l currency. All financial 
information presented in P<J k Rupee has been rounded off to the nearest thousanc.l unless sta ted otherwise. 

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The significant accounting policies which have been adopted In the prep<~ ration of fin ancial statements of the 
Company a re consistent with pre~1ous year except as described In Note 4.1 . 

4 .1 New, amended standards and interpretations which became effective 

There are certain standards, amendments anl.l interpre tat ions to the <JcL·ounting and re por ting standards which 
are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after july 1, 2020. These are considered not to be relevant 
or to have any significant effect on the Company's opera tions {a lthough they may affect the accounting for future 
transactions and events) and a re, therefore, not derailed in these financial statements. 

4.2 Standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective for the cuiTent financial yea r 

lAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statement~ (Amendments) 

lAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors (Amendments) 

lAS 12 Income Taxes (Amendments) 

lAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment (Amendments) 

lAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets [Amendments; 

Annual improvements to I FRS Standards (2018·2020 Cycle) 

Effective for periods 

beginning on or after 

jaol·O 1-2022 & jan·01·2023 

J<m·O 1 2023 
Jan-012023 

jan-012022 
jan-01 2022 
jan-01 2022 

The above ~"tandards and amendments <Jre not expected to have ;:~ ny material impact on Company's finand al 
sta tement:; in the period of initial apphcation. 

4.2 Use of estimates and judgements 

The preparation of financial ~ t<:~tements in conformity with the approved accounting standards and Companies Act 
2017 requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the management to exercise its 
judgment in the process of <~pplying the Company's accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually 
evaluated and arc basel.l on historical experience. including expectation of future events tha t are believed to be 
reasonable unde r the circumstances, the result of wluch form the basis of making the judgments about carrying 
values of assets and liabilities that a rc not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from 
these estimates. 

The estimates and under lying ;:~:;:;umptions arc reviewed on ;w ongoing basis. Revis ion to accounting estimates are 
recognized in the period in wh ich the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period 
of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

The areas where various assumptions and estimates a re s ignificant to the Company's fin anci;tl statements or 
where judgments were exercised in application of accounting policies vre as follows: 

-Property, plant and equipment ( 4.3) 
- Provisions ( 4.12) 

-Employee benefi ts ( 4.1 0) 
-Project assets in p rogress 
-Contingencies 
- Provisoon for expected credi t loss 



TECHNOLOGY UPGRADATION AND SKILL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
(A Company registered under section 42 of the Companies Act, Z017) 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 202 1 
4.3 Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant und equipment are stated aL revalued amount, being the fair value <tt the date of their revaluation, 
less any subsequent accumula ted depreciation and subsequent 8ccumul<tted impairment losses. 

Depreciation on additions is charged kom the month tn wht<.:h the assel is put to use and no depreciation is 
charged in the month of disposal. Where impairment loss is recognized, rhe depreciation charge is adjusted in the 
future periods to allocate the assets revised currying amount over its estimated useful life. 

Depreciation on proper ty, plan t and equipment is charged to income and expenditure account by applying s t ra ight 
line method so as to write off the value of the assets over thetr es timated useful lives at the rates given in note 5. 

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment is credited to the surplus on revaluation account. 
Revaluation is carried out with s ufficient regularity to ens ure th<J t the carrying amount of assets does not differ 
materially from their fa ir value. 

The asset's residual va lues and useful lives are rev1ewed at each financial year end, and adjusted if impact on 
depreciation is significant 

Normal repairs and maintenance arc charged to inwrne and expenditure account as and when incurred. Major 
improvements and modifications a rc capitalized and the a;sets so replaced, if any, are retired. 

Profit or loss on disposal of property CJnd equipment rep resented by the difference between the s<Jle proceeds and 
the carrying amount of the asset is included in swternen t of income and expenditure account. 

4.4 Intangibles 

Recognition and measurement 

Intangible assets, which are non-monetary assets without physical substance, are recognized at cost, which 
comprises purchase pr ice, non-refundable purchase taxes and other directly attributable expenditures relating to 
their implementation and customization. 

Subsequent expenditure 

Subsequent expenditu re is capitalized only when it increase the future economic benefits embodied in the specific 

asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is rccogni?.ed in statement of profit or loss. 

Amortization 

Intangible assets are amor t i?.ed from the monLh, when these assets are ilvailuble for use, using the straight line 

method, over its estimated useful life over which economic benefits t~re expected to flow to the Company. The 

useful life and amort i:z.<ttion method is reviewed and adjusted, if t~ppropriate, at each balance sheet date. The rates 

dete rmined to amortize the intangible assets are disclosed in note 6. 

4.5 Capital work-in-progress (CWJP) 

Capital work-in-progress represents expenditure on pro pe rty, plant and equipment in the course of construction 

and installation. Transfers a re made to relevant categor}' of property and equipment as and when assets are 

available for use. Capital work in progres:-; is stated at cost, less any identified impairment Joss. 

4 .6 Stores and spares 

Useable stores, spares and loose tools i.lre valued pr incipally at Fir:;t ln f-irst Out (FIFO) methods, while items 

considered obsolete are car ried at nil value. Items in transit are va lued at cost comprising invoice value plus other 

charges paid thereon. Provision is made in the financial swtements fo r slow moving sto re based on munagement's 

best estimate. 

4.7 Trade and other receivables 

Trade debts are recognised a t original invoice amount less an a llowunce for doubtful debts based on u review of all 
outstanding amounts at the yeur end. Bad debts are written off when identified. 

The company recognizes an a llowance for expected credit losses [ECLs) for all debt ins truments not held at fair 



TECHNOLOGY UPGRADATION AND SKILL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
(A Company registered under section 42 of the Companies Act, 2017) 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAl STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 

value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference bet\veen the contractual cash flows due in 
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the company expects to receive, discounted at an 
approximation of the original effective interest rate The expected <.:ash flows will include cash flows fro m the sale 

ECLs a re recognized in two stages. For cretlrt exposure~ lor which there has not been a s ignificant increase in 
credit risk since initiul recognition, EC Ls are provided for credit los~es that res ult from default events that are 
possible within the next 12-months (a 12·monlh ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been u 
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for ~·redit losses expected 

4.8 Financial assets 

A financial asset is consid~red to be impaired if Qbjecrive cvtdence indicate that one or more events had u negative 
effect on the estimated future cash flow of th<tt as~et. 

An Impairment loss in respect of a finunc ial asset measu red at amortized cost is calculated as a difference 
betvveen its carrying amount and the present v<t lue of the estimated future cash nows discounted at the original 
effective interest rate. 

Individually significant finan<.:ia l assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining financial 
asse ts are assessed collectively in groups that share s imila r credit risk characteristics. 

Non - financial assets 

The canying amounts of the Com pany's non ·iinanr.ral assets are reviewed at each reporting date ro determine 
whether there is any indicution of impamnent. If <lfiY such indication exi>ts then the asset's recoverable amount is 
estimated. 

An impairment loss is recogni:t.ed if th~ carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount The 
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to sell and value in use. Value in use is 
ascertuined through discounting of the estimated futu re cash t1ows using a discount rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the t ime value of money anti the risk specific to the assets. 

Impairment losses are recognized in Statement of income and expenditure. 

4.9 Investments· Held to maturity 

Investments with a fixed maturity that the company ha:; the intent and ability to hold to matur ity are classified as 
held-to-maturity investments. These are initially recognized on trade date a t cost and derecogn!zed by the 
Company on the date it commits to sell them off At each balance sheet date held-to-maturity investments are 
stated <:~t amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. 

4.10 Employee benefits 

Defined contribution plan 

The Company operates a recognized provident fund for all its regular employees. Equal monthly contributions are 
made to the fun d both by the Company and the employees at the rate of 6.67% of the salary. Obligation for 
contributions to defined contribution plan is recognized as an expense in the Income and expendi ture account as 
and when incurred. 

Compensated absences 

The Company provides fo r accumulating compensated uhsenccs up to two years. when the employees render 
services that increase their entitlement to future compensated abse llces. 

4.11 Trade and other payables 

Liabilities fo r trade and other payablcs are carried at cost whi<.:h is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in 
future for goods and services. 

4.12 Provisions 

A provision is recognized in the statement of fi nancial position when the Company has a legal or constructive 
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. The amount recognized as a 
provision reflects the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the prelient obligation a t the end of the 
reporting period. Provisions are dete rmined by d iscounting the expected futu re cash flows at a pre tax discount 
rate that reflects current market assessrnent of time value of money and risks specific to the liability. the 
unwinding of discount i~ recogmsed as fimrnce cost. llowever. provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date 
and adjusted to reflect <.:urrent best estimates. 



TECHNOLOGY UPGR/\DATION AND SI<ILI. OEVf.LOPMENT COMPANY 
(A Company registe red under section 42 of the Companies Act, 2017) 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 

4.13 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. for the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash 
equivalent<; comprise cash in hand and with banks in current and saving accounts and other short term highly 
liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amount of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk 
of change in value. 

4 .14 Foreign currency translation 

The financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company's functional currency. Transactions 
in fon:dgn currcnt:y during the year arc initially recorded in the fu nctional currency at the rate prevail ing at the 
date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabil ities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated into 
func tio nal currency rates of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date. All resulting differences are taken to 
the statement of income and expenditure. 

4.15 Related party transactions 

Transactions with related parties are made at Hrm's length prices except in circumstances where it is in the 
int:ere$t of t'ht~ Company not w do so. Parties are said to be related if they a re able to influence the operating and 
financial decisiOns of the wmpany as defined in International Accounting and Reporting Standard 24 "Related 
Parties". 

4.16 Offsetting of financial assets a nd liabilities 

Financial assets and liabilities are set-off and the net amount is reported in the statement of finan<.:ial position if 

the Company has legally enforceable right to set-oft' recogn ized amounts and the Company intends to settle either 

on a net basis or real izes the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

4.17 Taxation·Current 

No provision for taxation has been charged as the Company is exempt from tax under section 100c of Income Tax 
Ordinance, 2001 by the relevant tax authorities. 

4.13 Grants 

Government grants are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all 
attached conditions will be co mplied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized as income 
on a systematic bas;s over the periods that the relCited costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. 
When the grant relates to an CISset, tt is recogmzed as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the 
relot:ed a%et. 

4.19 Income recognition 

Income represents the fa ir value of the consideration received or receivable for services rendered, net of 
discounts. Income is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction 
will flow to the entity and the amount of Income, and the associated cost incurred, or to be incurred, can be 
measured reliably. 

Income from project implementation (service fee) is recognized over the period for which the activities on 
projects are going on, based upon percentage of completion method. 

Income on investme nt is recognized on accrual basis and profit on saving bank accounts is recognized on receipt 
basis. 

4.20 Short-term leases and leases oflow-value assets 

The company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short·term leases (i.e., those leases that 
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also 
applies the lease oflow-value assets recognition exemption ro leases that are considered of low value. Lease 
payments on short- term leases and leases of low-value assets are re t'ognized as expense on a s traight-line basis 
over the lease term. 

4 .21 Segme nt reporting 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief 
operating decision-maker who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating 
segments. TUSDEC 1s not a profit oriented entity and therefore have no such segments for the operations. 

4.22 Impact of Covid-19 

The spread of Covid - 19 as a pandemic and consequently imposition oflock down by Federal and Provincial 
Governments of Pakistan (Authorities) caused an overall economic slow down a nd disruption to various 
businesses. However, as TUSOEC is operating under the support of the government, therefore such material 
irnpac:t as considered by the management while prepari ng these fin ancial statements. 



TF.f.liNOlOGY UI'GRADATION 1\ND SIHI.l. DEVELOI'MF.NT COIIII'AKY 

(A Company ~gistered under se<"tlOl\ 42 of the Companies Act 2017) 

NOTES TO l'HE FINANCI AL STAnMENTS 

f'OR THE YliAR END EO JO JUNE 2021 

!; PROPF.RTV. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Opcr:orfng fi.xe<! a$~Cl.,. 

Rigll t nf l!se Asset< 

5. t Operating f iX..d asset s 

PARTICULARS 

Owned: 

Land 

Buildii'K 

Ruilding improwmcntc;. 

Office equipment 

Plan t & madlinory 

Co1n;')ut~r ~qulpmtnt 

F\u·niture ~l!\d ti"ture"S 

Vehicles 

l.ihrary book< 

Total 

Rhtht nf Use Asset.< 

PARTICULARS 

As on 
Olfuly 
2.020 

26 • .S<l0,00 J 

211.~56,0:17 

59,9i'l.~39 

~1.418,865 

860,754,978 

93,Hil,259 

19,:l'l~.793 

69,918,664 

250,775 

1.396,.S7S.611 

As on 
01Jnty 
20J9 

COS1'/ REVAWA1'10N 

I 
Addition>/ I 
(deletions) 

lmpactof I Acquisition I 
revaluation through merger 

441.()40. 997 

2 5,6[19,670 

2.2trl,285 

868.1!!4 

434,1 :!6.750 

IJ,U53.929 

1.080.807 

8,198.471 

'l2.1,951.093 

COST /REVALUATION 

!Additions/ 
(delt tions) 

I Impact of I Acqutsltlon I 
rev:lluation through merger 

l 
As on 

I 30Jt~ne 

2021 

168,140,998 

270.245,707 

f>2,26J .Sl4 

2<!,317.049 

1,294,891,728 

l01,79l,1 S8 

20,47'1,600 

76,1 4/,135 

250,775 

2.318,526,704 

I 
As on 

I 30)une 
2019 

Note 

!i. 1 

~.2 

As on 

2021 

01 july 
2020 

170,613,061 

53,704,292 

17,441>,398 

11 12.84o.nn 

93.0+8.670 

17.077,t:lU 

66.09:v.o7 

250. 775 

1,239,074,661 

2021 

As on 
OtJuly 
2018 

I 

I 

I 2021 I 2020 I 
Rupees Rupees 

1.005,987 .lS~ 

1,350.000 

) ,007,337.155 

DEPRECIATION 

A<lju• tmenl I Acqu isition J 
through mel'ger 

-··---- -----·· -··· -

DEPRECIATION 

Ad,jus lment ~~cquisll:ton 
tbrough merger I 

157,50/I,'JSO 

:!lS.6QQ 

157,H26.550 

for l 
the 

}'C~I"_ --

19.376.48:! 

1,631,857 

1,6'1'1,157 

47.91 4.2Sll 

628.51!! 

685.595 

1.531.(!28 

73.464,888 

For 

I the 
y~>r 

· ·• ·---·-·-·· .. ·-------·-- ··-·---- ·--· ·- · ·· .. ·- ·--· .. ·· · ·• • Rupees ·-·-----· ...... ... .... ·--· .... ·- ·----·-- .. ...... .. .... .. .. . . 

Vehir.le> 1,75~.000 1,024.100 2.77MOO !.426,400 

Total 1,752,000 1.024.400 2,776,400 1,426,4~0 

I 2021 l .20.20 I 
Rupees Rupees 

Allocation of <lcpreciaUon: 

Cost nf ~ervtce.s 47,914.250 B6.07S.•~a 

Administrative and genfo!ral cxpen~t>S 25,550.638 26,9011,632 
73.i64,888 112,984,1.30 

!lOOK VALUF. 

As nn AS ON 
RATE% 

30fUN~: 30 June 
7.021 

-
2021 __ 

16U.L40,998 0 
197,9!!9,54-1 7Z.2Sn,163 5-10 
55.336,1 49 6.925.:!75 10 

19.143,5.~5 ~.173,494 10 

!:l60,754.97U 134.1:l6,750 10 
';l:j,f>77,188 6.11 s.ooo 33 

)7,762,725 2.716.875 tO 

67 .624.6:ls 10,522,500 20 

250, 775 20 
t,:n 2,539,549 1,005,987.155 

HOOKVALIJE 
A~ on AS ON RATE~ 

30 lune 30JUNE 
2019 2019 

1,126.400 1,350,0011 20 

1.426,'\00 1.350,000 



TECIINO I.OGY tii'GRAOATION ANil SKILL f)H1ELOPMt~I\T COl>lt'AN"Y 

(,\ Cotn11any r~~:t•tered under ><'<ti on 42 o rthe C<mtpanies Act, 2017) 

'liOTES TO THE FIN,\NCIAI, STt\TEMENTS 

FOK THEY!'.AR ENO~:u 30 JUNt:2.021 

2020 
COSTLREVAI.UI\TION 

PARTICULARS 
As on Additions/ 

Olluly (dcl~tions) 

2019 
Owned: 

Land 2(> .. 'oOO.il01 

Building l. ;\ 1556,0:i i 

Ru•WinR improvr.!Tients ~'1.979,2:19 

Ofli<o equipment li.-14U.ll65 

1-'lont & machin• 1·y 86U,'IS1·.97U 

Cornpultr cquipmrnr ?3.7:!8.259 

Furf)i~lJ~ and (hctui't' 1'1.398,7'!3 

Vohid •S 1 q:J,678,1 7(1 

Lib;·ary book• ZSO.'i75 

Total :t,5l0,305, t 2S 

5 .2 

["'~"~'' 
~RTICUI.ARS As o n 

I I AdditionS/ 
Olluly (deletions) 

- 2019 

Vehidcs 1,75Z,Il00 

Total 1,752,000 

Disposals thro ugh 
Jmpactuf 

rttvaluation 
As nn As o n 

r~valu3UOn 
through ml're"r 

30Jun~ Cll July 
2020 201'1 

-----·~· · ····-····· ··-·-----·· · ··-··········-----····· ·· ··- Rup~s 

2/i.~O{l,()O I 

244,S56.0J7 

S9,979,239 

H.Hll,U6., 

860,754,978 

93.738,259 

1 'i,19B,79 :i 

(123.729.~11) 69,94fl,664 

2$0,775 

(123,729,514) 1,396,575,61 I 

COST 
As on 

Impact of I Acquisition I 
!<evaluation t~rouglt merger ~ 

~o lune 
2020 

0 1,752,000 

1,752.000 

J~~H.9 l7.945 

52.072,435 

15.554 .. JSI 

nG, 71>o,230 

92,3JU. IS7 

J S.629.2-~9 

180.l92.09:l 

ZSO,T/5 

1,249,820,04 5 

2.020 

As on 
01 July 
2019 
Rupees 

1:1-26,400 

1,426,400 

DEPRECIATI ON 

I 
BOOK VALUE 

Adjwtment Acquisition I for As on ASON 
through 111~rger r}le 30 Ju ne 30 JUNE 

v~a.r 2020 2020 

26,500,\l~l 

19,6'!5.116 178,<>1:1,061 t\!,,9•12.976 

t.63!,ij51 ,;3.704,192 6.~14,?-1 7 

1,!!'<2.247 17,416.390 1,002,467 

Uo.07 5,4'1H m2.81o.na 1·7,914,250 

110.5Lt 9:1,018,670 689,i8? 

1,447.871 17,077.130 1.321/>l•:l 

(12:$. 729,514) 1,5Jl,U28 66,09:!,607 ~.855.057 

250,775 

(123,729,SH) 112,984,130 1.239,074,661 1 57,500,950 

DEPRF.CIATION BOOK VALUE 

j 
I: or t A~ on ASON I Acquisition I Adjustment 

_ through merger 
the 30Junc JOJUN£ 

YC;!!T 2020 ---- ----2020 ----

1,426.400 325/>110 

1.426.400 325,600 

S.3 In the previou.< flnanl'iat year lunr. 30. 2020, Company had urorously Added Rs. 123.729,5 H in the cos\ of t.he vel\icl•• and th< • am<· >hlnunl deleted from the accumulutaod deprtclation ~nd ultimatoly thor~ was no imp~ct on tilt financial sU!tmenu. 
That was the pre.entatlnn •rrur or typo error and c:<>mpany has updated now ell< schroule for the (><'e~ntatfon purpnsts. 

5.4 The prup<'l'tY and equipment (Ownffi-5 1 and Joased-5.2) and Intangible (SoftwaJ'C-6.1) ol' the Company wtt-.: revalued on 30 June, 20Zl by an indepondcnt aco'Cdited valuer Anckrson Consulting (Pvt.) lid- (Valuers, t;ngm..et-s & Survtyors). 'IJ>e 
valuati4ln wa~ based on compar.:~ble marktt tran5a<.:tions thJl con~ider sales of s;mHar propertiu tha t h;JVe been transacte~ in open •narket. T1\c im pact of valuatiQn h;Ht been incilrporJtt-d in fin;mclal statemr.nts ;wet h~d r~sulted in an in ere-as~ in 
revaluation sur\)lu• ofRs. \125,207,303 over the written down value ol' Rs. 84,30';1,602 oF these asset< as on 30 june 20l 1 (total revalutd Amount being Rs. 1,()0?,590,905-forr.td value) 
Tile previou< valuation was carrltd our I>}' an indc~tianr valuer Empire Entorpri~ (Prlv•tr) limite<! as at Juc.c JO. 2014 

Had the property and equipment not heen revalued, the total 'arrying an10unts at JO lune would have been as follow~: 

Building 

Uuildln~ imrrovtomCI"'~ 

Offi<·~ C<!Uipmmt 

Vehi<'I(•.J.tigh1tli' U!iiC .asset 

1- 2021 r- 2020 I 
Rupees Ru~ 

11,522 21,4 J:l 

482,G50 559,75!1 

17,703 27,003 

3Z5.600 325,600 

637,475 933,774 

R.\TE 'IIo 

0 

5-10 
LO 

H) 

10 

:n 

)(I 

20 

20 

R.\TE CV. 

--

2tl 



TECIINOI.O C.Y UPGRAIM'f!ON ANll SKILL DEVELOPMENT CO~Il'I\NY 

(A Comrany r•glsterod under S<'Ction 42 of the Companies Ar.t, ~01 7) 

1\'0TES TO Tlif. FINA~CIAI. ~~ ATEMEI\'l'S 

l' OR THI YEA It t:NDEO 30 JliNf: 2021 

!i.S T ht> nr.nt f>f o.:.se ~·~~·~rs-5.Z reprtts~nts .~ vehid~ ror ~"·hir.h bar.k ha5 not pruvid~d origin~ I ducunlN~t.< yet f<.lr t~lC ()WI'le-r5hlp lran~f~r and th~ sante not lransf'crre-d ~o ~ht· ~.~ ~ .. ·nr.d JssCLs. 
S.S 1\s. on JO Jur.~ 2011. m;mag~m~ntt:Kpeet:s thatf~ir value {)fthe ~ed. assct·c; fs :tot rnatrri .. llyd;ff~n·nr fror.1 tht"lr net l)ook valut" 

6. 1NTANG1HL£S 

Softwa;"l' 

G.1 Softw~rc 

PI\RTICULAHS 

Sultworc. 

Tu1a1 ~02 1 

1'.\RTICUI .. ARS 

l 

As on l 01 July 
2020 

16,913.~85 

16,913,985 

As on I Ol)uly 
Z019 

COST 

I 
As on 

Additions/ Jmpac( of 1 Acquisition l 30 June 
(deletions) revaluation through merger 

2021 

2.231,810 19.145,795 

2,231,810 19,145,795 

COST 
As on 

Additio ns/ I j Acq ulsitlon I :50 rune (deletions) through merger 
2020 

2021 

Asou 
01 July 
2020 
- upees 

'16,167.964 

16,167,964 

2020 

As o n 
Ol)uly 
2019 

I 

I 

6.1 

AMORTI'ZA 110N 
For 

1 Acqui• ition I the through merger 
year 

7H,OIH 
724,00) 

AMORTIMTION 
For I AcquisiUon I th~ 

throt~gh merg~r 
vear 

2,2S3, 750 746.07.1 

2,253,750 74.(,,021 

ROOK 

I 

As on VALU E 
30June /\SON 

2.021 30]UN1i 

16,tlg2,015 l.2!iti.:;n 
16,09Z,04.5 2,253,7.~0 

BOOK 

I 
As on YALUil 

30 junc A.~ ON 
zozo 301UNF. 

· .... ...... ........................ .. .............. .... .... Rupee.< ............ ...... .... ........ .. ...... ................ ...... 

Sothv;.:r•: 16,9L\,9HS 16.')13.91.15 15,:!91.723 T/6.211 16,167,'104 74(,021 
Total 'lO:i(J 16,913,985 16,913,9!15 1S,391,723 776,241 16.167,964- 746,021 

&. I Hat! the ;>1'opr:rty and iJltangihle nul b<'cn reva.1ued, tile tnt.ll carrying amounls at 30 lune wuuld have been as follows: 
I 202 1 I 2020 I 

llu~JHS Rupeu 

Sct{C\v~re!i 2 1.940 74/i,UZ I 

21.940 746,021. 
Amnrtlt..ll:oll oflntan19blcs charg.,d lO Admlnlstr'JUVC CXJI"nses. 

l'ar~kulat·s of immov3blc property (i.e. land ancJ building) in lh~ name of Company Jre., follows: 

Location Usage Total Area Square Yards 

Sialkot By Pass Chowk, Sialkot Road Gujranwala umd and Building 16335 

Mor~ Emanabad Opposite Custom Inte lligence Office 
Near Commander Ceramtcs 12-KM Kamoki, Gujranwala PaKistan. l .. a"d ~nd Bui1r1ing ?680 

RATE 'lie 

33 

RATF:"'o 

:13 



TECHNOLOGY UPGRADATION AND SKILL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
(A Company registered under section 42 of the Companies Act, 2017) 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 

7 LONG TERM DEPOSITS 

These include deposits against: 
Security deposit SNGPL 

Office 

Others 

7.1 It includes security deposits paid in respect of utilities. 
Security deposits paid do not carry markup arrangements. 

8 PROJECTS ASSETS 

Projects in progress 
Advances to suppliers 
Prepayments and other receivables 

8.1 Projects in progress 

Footwear Cluster Development 

Industrial Development and Automation (IDAC) 

NASPAT 
Engineering support ccntres(ESC) 

Note I 

7.1 

8.1 
8.2 
8.3 

8.1.1 

8.1.1 
8.1.1 
8.1.1 

2021 II 2020 
Rupees Rupees 

2,715,824 2.715,824 

381,883 381,883 
1,213,533 1,634,821 

4,311,240 4,732,528 

966,529,890 839,495,445 

924,385 26,078 

2,505,570 5,665,953 
969,959,845 845,187,476 

44,992,435 24,132,749 

127,743,135 91.251.699 

39,761,271 24,078,707 

754,033,049 700,032,290 
966,529,890 839,495,445 



TECHNOLOGY UPGRADATION AND SKILL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
(A Company registe red under section 42 of the Companies Act, 2017) 
NOTES TO TH.E FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR TH.E YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 

8.1.1 Projects in progress 

Opening balance as on 1 July 

Additions: 

Capital e:xpenditw·e 
lluilding improVf~ments 

Office equipment 
IT Infrastructure 

Funtitures & fixtures 

Vehtcles 

Machtuery and equipment 

Other assets 

Oper·a lional e xpenditure 
l::mployces cost 

TUSDEC / PMlJ service fee 
Vt!htclc running and maintenance Wot 

Elec:tril'ity, fuel and power 

Consumablcs 
Advertisement 
Other expenses 

Less: transferred to TUSDEC on completion of pt·ojcct 
Closing as on 30 June 2021 

I 2021 I 2020 I Footwear I IDAC I ESC I NASPAT I Footwear I IOAC l ESC I NASPT I 
---------···························· Hupees ·····--·····--·····-····----------···- -···---··························· Rupees ··············-··········---····-····--

24,132,719 91,251,699 700,032,290 24,078,707 617.581,610 

3,182,704 . - . - . . 
- . - - - -

840,907 1·80,221 450,420 - 3,925,232.00 . -
- - - . - .. 

- - - - - -

12,210,120 - - . 4.9 15,808 
- 139,500 - - 15,742,38\1.00 78,'181 ,232 - -

16,233,731 619,721 450,420 19,667.620 70,481,232 4.915,808 

2,490,000 6,925,942 36,704,610 - - 31,090,~85 1 -
400,000 27,075,000 3,083,017 - -

- - - - . - I -
419,069 295,272 1,626,1.93 190.175 - - 1,042,238 -
125,080 47,215 1,806,307 439,951 1,865,307 -
472,977 . 249,820 395,600 - 516,847 -
718,029 

.. 
1,528,286 __ - - 10,0!J0,392 14,656,838 4,165,129.00 12,770,467.00 10,020.195 2'1 ,078,707 I 

----------- -·-·· - ---------- -- - ------ ------- ··----------------------

4,625,955 35.871,71 5 53,550,339 15,682,564 4-,465,129.00 12,770.467 47,534,872 24,078,707 

44,992,435 127,743,135 754,033,049 39,761,271 24,132.749 91,2.51,699 700,032,290 24,078,707 



T £CHNOLOGY UPGRADATION AND SKILL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
(A Company registered under section 42 of the Companies Act, 2017) 
NOTES TO THE FIN ANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 

8.2 Advances to suppliers 

NAVTTC 

GIZ 
Footwear 

IDAC 
ESCs 

8.3 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABALES 

NAVTTC: 

Other receivables 

IDAC: 

Prepayments 

ESC: 

Prepayment~ 

Other rece ivables 

NASPAT: 

Other receivables 

Footwear: 
Prepayments 

9. TRADE DEBTS 

Unsecured - considered good 
Related party 

Pakistan Industria l Development Corpuralion (PJDC) 

Trade receivables-others 

Less: Provision for Expected Credit Loss 

MoYcment in Expected C redit Loss 

Opening balance 

Charged fo r the year 
Closing balance 

Note 

9.1 

24,000 -

26,079 26,078 

457,056 -
352,001 -

65,249 -

924,385 26,078 

924,385 26,078 

63,777 12,957 

II tsz4,678 1 

1,524,678 

2,427,~941 [ 402,688 

2,903,630 

2,427,394 3,306,318 

14,399 II 3n,ooo 1 

14,399 372,000 

II 4so.ooo 1 

450,000 
2,505,570 5,665,953 

4,199,514 4,199,514 

10,269,536 12,430,457 

( 4,480,348) _ ____::(.....:.4,_16_4.:.._,5_14....:...) 

91988,7 02 ==,;:1,;:2,~4,;;65~,4;;5~7 

4,164,514 4,164,514 

___ ..:..3..::.1::..:5,..:..8.::..34.::.. -------
4,480,348 ==~4,::;,16;:;,4:!::;,5:;:;1~4 

9.1 This represents receivable from PIDC in respect of expenses incurred by the Company o n its behalf for 
Skills Developme nt Centre (SOC) l<haki and Batgre1m and it is past due fo r more than 4 years. 



TECHNOLOGY UPGRADATION AND SKILL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
(A Company registered under section 42 of the Companies Act, 2017) 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 
10. SHORT TERM ADVANCES-considered good 

Advances to employees 
against expenses 

against salary 
Advances to suppliers 

11. SHORT TERM ADVANCES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 

Prepaid insu rance 
Sales tax; excise duty 

Othe rs 

12. SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS 

Faysal Bank Limited 

Add: Intesest accrued 

394,312 

382,263 

776,575 

1,378,536 
1,063,279 

22,750 
2,464,565 

15,000,000 
205,821 

15,205,821 

122,940 
5,550 

382,263 
510,753 

1.282,996 
609,495 

33,271 

1,925,762 

15,000,000 

291,758 
15,291,758 

12.1 These represent Term Deposit Receipts (TORs) which are on roll-over basis, having maturity period of one 
to three months and carry mark-up at the rate ranging from 5.75% to 7.25% (2020: 9.5% to 10.5%) per 
annum. 

13. TAX REFUNDS DUE FROM THE GOVERNMENT 

Tax refunds due frorn the governme nt 
13.1 20,796,425 19,829,558 

20,796,425 19,829,558 

13.1 This represents inco me tax withheld by the banks from profits on deposit accounts and Term Deposit 
Receipts. 

14. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 

Cash in hand 

Cash at banl<s 
-Current Accounts 

- Deposit Accounts (14.1&14.2) 

418,385 

136,453 

88,385,302 

88,940,140 

321,304 

46,049,536 

46,370,840 

14.1 The deposils in saving accounts carry mark-up at the rate ranging from 5.5% to 6.5% (2020: 5.5% to 6.5 
%) per annum. 

14.2 This includes Jn amount of Rs. 1,200,000 (20 20: Rs. 1,200,000) on which bank has lien against guarantees 
issued on behalf of the Co mpany. 



TECHNOLOGY UPGRADATION AND SKILL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
(A Company registered under section 42 of the Co mpanies Act, 2 017) 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 

15. AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL 

135,000,000 (202 0: 135,000,000) ordinary 
shares of Rs. 10 each 
Closing Balance 

16. ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAlO-UP CAPITAL 

23,883,000 (2020: 23,883,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 

Closing Balance 

17 Merger reserve-Business combination 

1,3 50,000,000 

1,350,000,000 

238,830,000 

238,830,000 

1,350,000,000 

1,3 50,000,000 

238,830,000 

238,830,000 

Two companies namely Gujranwala Tools Dies and Moulds Centre (GTDMC) and Cera mics Development 
and Training Complex(CDTC) has been amalga ma ted in to Technology Upgradation and Ski ll Development 
Company (TUOEC) with effect from 18th July, 2017. Ministry of Industry and Production (MOIP) approved 
the amalgamation of aforementioned companies vide its decision dated 25th May, 2017. Subsequent to the 
approval of MOIP the BOD of respective com panies approved the scheme of amalgamation as required 
under section 284 of the Companies Act, 2017. Securties a nd excha nge commis ion of pakistan (SECP) ha s 
acknowledged the scheme of a malgamation and BO D reso lutio n vide its letter no. ARL/0082377/9050 
da ted 2nd November, 2017. As per terms of the Scheme of amalgamation, Pooling Interest method is to be 
used for amalgamation i-e All the assets (properties, rights, ti tles, interest, investments, receivables and 
others) and all liabilities (duties, obligations and undertaki ngs) of the transferee companies (GTDMC & 
CDTC) arc transferred to tra nsferor compa ny(TU SDEC) a t carry ing amount at effecti ve date of 
amalgamatio n scheme. 

The fair value and carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities acquired are as follows: 

(a)- GUJRANWALA TOOLS, DIES AND MOULDS CENT RE - Net Assets 

Assets 

Property, plant and equipment- opcraling 

Capital work in progress 

Long term deposits 

Stores, spare parts and loose tools 

Stock in trade 

Trade debts and other receivables 

Loans, advances and prepayments 

Advance tax 

Cash and bank balances 

Ca rrying 
Amounts as a t 
july 17, 2017 

319,587,553 

2,075,273 

052,688 

16,365,510 

793,875 

5,196,175 

3,463,876 

5,144,505 

7,160,984 

360,640,439 

Fair value and Fair value 
other as at 

Adjustments July 17,2017 

. 319,587,553 

- 2,075,273 

- 852,688 

- 16,365,510 

- 793,875 

- 5,196,175 

- 3,463,876 

- 5,144,5 05 

- 7,160,984 

360,640,439 



TECHNOLOGY UPGRADATION AND SKILL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
(A Company registered under s ection 42 of the Companies Act, 2017) 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 

Liabilities 

Liability against assets subject to finance lease 

Trade and other payables 

Current portion of long term liabili tics 

1,356,348 

27,378,11 1 

333,652 

29,068,11 1 

331,572,328 

-
-
-

(b)- CERAMICS DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING COMPLEX- Net Assets 

Assets 

P1·operty, plant and equipment 

Long term security deposits 

Stores and spares 

Trade debts 

Receivables 

Prepayments 

Short term investments 

Tax refunds due from the Government 

Cash and bank balances 

Liabilities 

Accrued and other liabilities 

Fair value of Net Assets 

-Gujranwala Tools, Dies And Moulds Center 

-Ceramics Development And Train ing Com plex 

Elimination ofinvestment 

Carrying 
Amounts as at 
July 17, 2017 

146,916,835 

2,196,524 

1.451,017 
1,129,660 

180,204 

349,109 

13,000,000 

3,015,544 

5,719,222 

173,958,115 

L 664.7s s II 
664,758 

173,293,3 57 

falr value and 
other 

Adjustments 

. 

. 

-
. 

-
. 

-
. 

-

331,572,328 

173,293,358 

504,865,686 

60 

504,865,626 

18. SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Balance at 01 July 

Incremental depreciation charged during the year 

Revaluation surplus for the year 

Closing balance 

2,679,044 

(1,042,074) 

925,207,303 

926,844,273 

1,356,348 

27,378,1 11 

333,652 

29,068,1 11 

331,572,328 

Fair value 
as at 

July 17 , 2017 

146,916,835 

2,196,524 

1,451,017 

1,1 29,660 

180,204 

349,109 

13,000,000 

3,015,544 

5,719,222 

173,958,115 

II 664,7ss.oo 1 

664,758 

173,293,357 

= 

3,997,882 

(1,318,838) 

2,679,044 



TECHNOLOGY UPGRADATION AND SKILL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
(A Company rcgistea·ed under section 42 of the Companies Act, 2017) 
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FORTHEYEARENDED30 JUNE2021 
19 DEFERRED GRANT -

Note 

Opening 
Addition 

Balance 
as at Fund Received 

01 July 
for the year Other Income 

I Deletion/Transfer -
Amortization of 

Grant 
Fund returned/ 

Oosing balance 

for the year 
SurrenderedjTra 

as at 

Note24 
nsf erred 

30June 

--' 

30 June2021 -- · · ---- · -------- · ----- · ---- · --- · --- · --- · ------ Rupees ------------- · ---- · ------- · ---- · --- · --- · ·•· 
Grant related to assets 

Grant related to income: 
Engineering support centres 
National vocational and technical commission 
Footwear Cluster Development Centre 
NASPAT 
I ndustial Designing and Automation Centre (I DAC) 
GIZ 

30 June 2020 
Grant related to assets 
Grant related to income: 
Engineering support centres 
National vocational and technical commission 
Footwear Cluster Development Centre 
NASPAT 
lndustial Designing and Automation Centre (I DAC) 
GIZ 

19.1 

19.2 
19.4 
19.3 
19.3 
19.3 
19.4 

19.1 

19.2 
19.4 
19.3 
19.3 
19.3 
19.4 

6,822.948 2,138,768 

730,279.639 120,877,147 9,582,743 
6,010,333 23,138,903 77,209 12,248,865 

24,582,749 22,049,774 . . 

24,450,707 33,400,000 -
92,776,377 132,275,250 . -

(749,648) 45,977,362 469,961 20.248,400 
877,350,157 377,718,436 10,129,913 32.497,265 
884,173,105 377,718,436 10,129,913 34,636,033 

8,961,716 2,138,768 

678,829,235 77,164,000 6,854,762 
6,005,902 2,743,829 - 2,739,398 

30,000,000 - -
84,970,000 . 

100,000,000 
18,265,837 - 928,973 19,944,458 

703,100,974 294,877,829 7,783,735 22,683,856 
712,062,690 294,877,829 7,783,735 24,822,624 

4,684,180 

59,656,659 801,082,870 
16,977,580 

1,252,368 45,380,155 
18,075,037 39,775,670 
96,956,491 128,095,136 

25,449,275 
17 5,940.555 1,056,760,686 
175,940,555 1,061,444,866 

6,822,9413 

32,568,358 730,279,639 

- 6,010,333 
5,417.251 24,582,749 

60,519,293 24,450,707 
7,223,623 92,776,377 

. (749,648) 
105,728,525 877,350.157 
105,728,525 884,173.105 

19.1 This represents grant against assets of NJ DA transferred to TUSDEC as per letter no. 3(15)2006-plg dated 31 December 2013 granted by the Ministry of Industries and Production and other 
projects merged into TUSDEC 

19.2 The projects will be merged in the Company w.e.f01 july 2021. 
19.3 The fate of these PSDP projects will be decided on completion of the projects. 

19.4 These arc ongoing Donor funded projects and shall be completed on expiry of terms as mentioned in the agreement. 



TECHNOLOGY UPGRADATION AND SKILL DEVEl..OP MEN'f COMPANY 
(A Company registered under section 42 of the Companies Act, 2017) 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAY ABLES 

Creditors 
Accrued liabilities 

Advances from cuslomers 

Withholding income tax payable 

Employees benefits payable 

Other liabilities 

Payable f o machinety supplier 

Payable to PIDC 

Note 

20.1 

2021 II 2020 
Rupees Rueees 

3,891,318 3,455,842 
20,012,475 20.489,322 

1,368,825 1,420,056 

909,048 787,604 

2,390,062 1.918.572 

10,976,102 9,641,363 

10,679,360 10.679,360 

66,242 66,242 
50,293,432 48.461,361 

20.1 This constitutes an amount of Rs. 10,679,360 a~ a perform;mce bond which is payable to TRUMPJ7 (Germany) after one 

year from the commissioning of Laser Cutting and Marking madtinl2. 

21. PROJECT LIABILITIES 
Note 

These represent accrued expenses and/ or payables in respect of the following projects: 

GIZ: 
Payables 856,470 

Accrued expenses 3,043,930 
3,900,400 

ESC: 

Payables 21.1 7,090.547 

Foocwear: 

Payables 205,~8911 
Accrued expenses 

205,789 

ITB: 
Payables 28,0~511 
Accrued expenses 

28,065 

NAVTTC: 
Payables 860,395 
Accrued expenses 3,790,536 

4,650,931 

15,875,732 

592,288 
226,260 
818,548 

8,036.474 

2,828,~65 1 

2,828,065 

479,386 

3,790,536 
4,269.922 

15,953,009 

21.1 This Includes an amount of Rs. NIL (2020: Rs. 2,000,253) against the retention money of construction contractors as 
per the agreement for the ongoing contrucUon of Peshawer Light Engmeering Centre, (Lasbela, Light Engineering 
Upgradation Centre and Hyderabad Ungineering Sports Centre. 

22. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

22.1 Contingencies 

Guarantees issuect by a bani< on behalf of the Company ut 

favor or the following parties: 

Pakistan State Oil 

Note 

1,200.000 1.200.000 



TECHNOLOGY UPGRADATION AND SKILL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 

(A Company registered under section 42 of the Companies Act, 2017) 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 

22.2 Commitments 

23. INCOME FROM SERVICES 

Income from: 

trainings 
projects 

laboratory test and :m scanning 

Toll manufacturing 

Project implementation fee 

Nil Nil 

Note 

23.1 9,243,789 34.174,403 
23.2 4,762,217 6:59,836 
23.3 10,894,401 7,769,928 

23.4 24,180,591 21,747,682 

23.5 30,588,017 14,156,000 
79,669,015 78,507.849 

79.669,015 78,507.849 

23.1 This represents the amount being recognised in respect or income rrorn trainmg courses, short courses (CAD/CAM 
courses, Auto CAD) and Olher administrative fcc against the different Donor projects. 

23.2 This represents amount recognized in respect of projects for the overheads shared. 

23.3 This represents the amount being recognised in respect of income from laboratory test fee and ZD/30 scanning. 

23.4 This represents the amount being recognized in respect. of income from services provided by GTDMC and CDTC. 

23.5 This reore.sents the amount be in~ rccogni1.cd 1r1 rr.snect of income from imolementation of PSDP oroiccts. 

24. AMORTIZATION OF GRANT 

amorti·tation of grant related to asset 

amortization of grant related to income 

24.1 
24.2 

2,138.768 
32,497,265 
34,636,033 

2,138,768 
22,683,856 

24,822,624 

24.1 This represents the amortization of deferred gram <Jgainst the assets of ~IDA being merged with the TUSOEC. 

24.2 This represents amortization of grant against following projects: 

25. 

National Vocational and Technical Commission (NAVTTC) 

GIZ 

OPERATING COST 

G<Js charges 
Salaries, wages and other benefits 

SLores and spares consumed 

Electricity charges 

Diesel for generator 
Repairs and maintenance 

Insurance cha rges 

Dcp•·eciation 

Training expenses 
Misc. expenses 

Note 

25.1 

5 

12,248,865 2,739,398 
20,248,400 19,944,458 
32.497,265 22,683,856 

2021 II 2020 

Rupees Ru2ees 

8,474,794 8,390,445 
16,421,412 18,061,288 

902,022 654,985 
6,572,182 6,160,401 

195,283 214.186 
1,043,805 840,959 

6,120 
47,914,250 86,075,498 

289,326 1,935,257 
72,000 110.979 

81,885,074 122,450,118 

25.1 This includes a n amount ofRs. 547,410 (2020: ns. 587.920) recognized in respect of Provident Fund and Rs. 354,553 
(2020: Rs. 17,421) in respect of compensated absences. 



TECHNOLOGY UPGRADATION AND SKILL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
(A Company registered under section 42 of the Companies Act, 20 17) 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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26. PROJECT EXPENSES 

ITB: 
Employee cost 
Other expenses 

NAVTTC: 
Employee cost 
Consumables 
Other expenses 

GIZ: 
Employee cost 
Vehicle running and maintenance cost 
Advertisement 
Travelling and conveyance 
Postage and telephone 
Other expenses 

27. ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL EXPENSES 

Salaries and other benefits 
Depreciation 
Amortization on intangibles 
Traveling, vehicle running and maintenance 
Utilities 
Rent, rate and taxes 
Repair and maintenance 
Advertisement and business development 
Consumahles 
janitorial services 
Postage and telephone 
Insurance 
Security services 
Printing and stationery 
Legal and professional charges 
Miscellaneous expenses 
Auditors' remuneration 
Project expenses 
Provision for expected credit loss 
Fee and subscription 

27.1 

5. 
6 

27.2 

L...----------~~ L...----1~,5~81~,44~0~ ' 779.946 
2,360,386 

6,506,961 859.228 
1,129,773 749;120 
4,612,131 1,131,050 

12,248,865 2,739,398 

14,810,367 l4,1l92,503 
11,466 1011589 

902,786 417,952 
725,389 1,825,487 
274,583 210,139 

3,523,809 2.496,788 
20,248,400 19,944,458 
32,497,265 25,044.242 

32,497,265 25,044,242 

2021 II 2~20 
Rupees Ru ees 

51,407,047 58.489,205 
25,550,638 26,900,632 

724,081 776,241 
4,671,593 5,762,226 
1,792,233 2,367,496 
2,155,097 2.213,790 

813,783 563,258 
241,167 143,111 

697,548 1,049,194 
1,106,630 1.831,858 
1,407,233 1.728.722 

549.235 
1,479,484 1,530,600 

271,101 393,712 
256,501 349,240 
193,887 136,934 
330,000 330,000 

36,720 1,651,999 
315,834 
115,253 43,772 

93,565,830 106,819,225 

27.1 This includes an amount of Rs. 2,735,498 (2020: Rs. 2,736,791) recognit.cd in respect of Provident Fund and Rs. 
2,047,664 (2020: Rs. 1B0,105) in respect of compensated absences. 

27.2 Auditor's remuneration 

Audit fee 330,000 
330,000 

330,000 
33Q,OOO 



TECHNOLOGY UPGRADATION AND SKILL DEVEWPMENT COMPANY 
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28. SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES 

Salaries and wages 

29. OTHER INCOME 

Income from financial assets: 
Saving accounts 
Term depositc; receipts 

Income from assets other than financial assets: 
Miscellaneous 

Note 

29.1 

29.1 It includes reversal of liabili ty for the vendor in respect of the ITB project 

30. TAXATION 

2021 
II 

2020 
Rupees Rupees 

1,196,222 1,152,91 2 

1,196,222 1,152,912 

348,948 791,919 
896,810 2,524,662 

1,245,758 3,316,581 

5,878,750 II 2,4ss,o93 1 

5,878,750 2.458,093 
7,124,508 5,774,674 

No provision for taxation has been charged as the Company is exempt fro m tax under s ection lOOc of Income Tax 
Ordinance, 2001. 

31. RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS 

31.1 The related parties comprise associated undertakings, directors of the Company, key management personnel and post 
employment benefit plans. The parent of the enti ty is Pakistan Industrial Development Corporation (Private) Limited 
which holds 99.9% capita l of the entity. Amounts due from and to related parties are shown under respective notes to 
the fina ncial statements. 

Description Nature oftransactions 2021 

Rupees 

2020 

Rupees 

Provident fund Contribution to Provident fund 3,282,908 3,324,711 
31.2 The parent of the entity is Pakistan Industrial Development Co rporatio n (Private) Limited which holds 99.9% capital of 

the entity. 



TECHNOLOGY UPGRADATION AND SKILL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
(A Company registered under section 42 of the Companies Act, 20 17) 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Company's tlnancia l liabili ties w mpnscs of trad t a nd oLher payable ~. The main purpose of these financial 
liabili ties is to raise finances tor Company"s overallons. The C:omp<.my's financial assets comprise of long term deposits, 
trade debts, other receivables, short Lerm investments and cash and bank balances that arrive directly from its 
operations. 

The Company's activities expose ir to a variety of finaucial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and marl<et risk (including 
currency risk and interest rate risk). The Company's overall risl< management program focuses on the unpredictability 
of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential act verse effects on the llnancial performance. 

Risk management is carried out by the Uuard of Otrcctors (the Board), and Chief financial Officer (CFO). The Board 
provides principles for overa ll ris l{ management, as well as policies covering specific areas such as currency risk, 
interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity rislt 

The Company's risk management policies are establ ished to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set 
appropriate risk limits and con trols, and to monitor risks and adherenct! to ltmits. Risk management policies and 
systems are reviewed regularly to react to changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. 

32.1 Credit risk 

Credit risk represents the riSl< tha t one party to a J'inanr.ial instrument w•ll cause a fimHlcial Joss for the other party by 
failing to discharge an obligation. The carrying amount o r financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. 
'J'he Company's credit risk is attributable to its long term deposits, trade and other receivables, short term investments 
and bank balances. The maximum exposure to credit risk a tlhe reporting date was as follows: 

Balances witll banks 

The Company held balances of Rs. 68,521,755 with banks as at june 30, 2021 (June 2020: 46,049,536) Management 
assesse the credit quality of the counter parties as satisfactory. Credit rating information of banks is as follows: 

Bani</Financial institution Rating 2021 2020 
Short ten11 Lon1:term Agency Rupees Rupees 

.A.~kari b:lt1k limited AI+ t\,\ + PACRA 70,275,366 38.524,981 
Bank alfaiRh limited .A 1 ·~ !\ A.:.. PACRA 5,270 2,273 
:V!cb bnnk lioniu.-d i\1 + ,.\ ;\ !\ PACRA 516,173 985,419 
Son~n bank ;\(+ !\...\ . PACRA 92,090 458,995 

Fay~~~ bank limited i\ I"' ,\ ,'. PACRA 1,790,055 1,498,499 
1'-'ational bnnk or Pakistan ,.\I~ ,\ , \ ,.\ PACRA 15.842,801 4,579,258 

ll~bih bank limit(;d .-\1 + .\ ,\ ;\ JCR·VIS 111 
88,521,755 46.049,536 

Trade debts 

The Company's exposure to Credit risk is 1110ucnced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. 
However management also conside rs the credit nsks of its customer base. Credit risl< related to trade debts is 
managed by established procedures and corHrols relating to customers credit risk management. The company 
mainta ins a provision for doubtful debts that represe rtLS its estimate or probable losses is respect of trade debts. 
Outstanding rE<ceivables are regularly monitored. 

The maximum credit risk exposure at reporting date is carrying value of financial assets stated above . 

The aging of trade debts at the reporting date is: .___R_:_,~_!_~_s _ _.l LI_..:R;.;.;:;;;l~:.;:!;.;~.:..s _ _. 
Past due but not impaired 

Pas t due 1-30 days 
Past due 31-60 days 

Past due 61-90 days 

Over90 days 

1,698,138 
139,976 

14,216,449 
16,054,563 

8,481,235 
3,984,172 

4,164,514 
16,629,971 



TECHNOLOGY UPGRADATION AND SI<ILL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
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The credit quality of financial assets that arc neither past due nor impaired c<ln be assessed by reference to external 
credit ratings (If available) or to historical mforlllation about counterparty default rate. The table below shows the 
bank balances and short term investments held with some major counterparties at the balance sheet date: 

32.2 Liquidity risl{ 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able r.o meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The 
Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficielllliquidity to 
meet its liabilities when due. under both normal and stressed conditions. For this purpose the Company has export 
running finance facility available from a commercial bank to meet its liquidity requirements. without incurring 
unacceptable losses or risl<ing damage to the compa ny·s reputation. 

The table below analyses the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining 
period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the 
contractual undiscounted cash llows: 

Carrying Contractual 

I 
Less than 

Between 
1 and 5 

amount cash !lows 1 year 
years 

30 June 2021 --· ·--· ·--· · ·--· ·---· ---· · ·--(Hupees) · -------------· ·-------·-----
Trade and other payables 50.293.432 SO.Z93.4:3L. 28.571.728 21.721.704 

Project liabilities 15,875,732 15,875.732 

66,169,164 66,169,164 44,447,460 21,721,704 

Carrying Contractual Less than 
1 

and 
5 I I 

Between 

amount cash flows 1 year years 

30 June2020 ··--··--···--··--···--···--··(Rupees)-------·------·--·----·---·--

Trade and other payables 18;161,361 48,461,361 48.461,361 

Project liabilities 15,953,009 15,953.009 15.953.009 

64,414,370 64,414,370 64.414,370 

32.3 Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices 
will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk 
management i~ to manage and control market risk exposures wilhin acceprable parameters, while optimizing the 
return. 

(a) Cunency risk 

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial transactions or 
receivables and payables that exist due to transactions in foreign currencies. 

Monitory Items, including financial a~~ets and financial liabililles, denominated in currency other t~an 

functional currency of the Company ure penodicnlly restated to Pak rupee equivalent and the associated gain or 
loss is taken to the profit and loss account. As there are no foreign <;urrency transactions during the year. the 
Comoanv is not exoosed lO currencv risl1. 

(b) Interest rate risk 

This represents the risk that the fa ir value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of changes in market interest rates. 

The Company has no significant. long-term interest-bearing financial instruments. The Company's interest rate 
risk arises from short term investments and bank balances only. There are no financial instruments obtained at 
variable rates so the Company is not exposed t.o cash flow interest rate risk. Saving accounts and short term 
investments are carried at fixed rate which expose the Company to fair value interest rate risk. 

At the balance sheet date the interest rate profile of the Company's interest bearing financial instruments was: 



TECHNOLOGY UPGRADATION AND SKILL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
(A Company registered under section 42 of the Companies Act, 2017) 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 

fixed rate ins trumen ts 

Financial assets 
Saving bank accounts 
Short term investments 

2021 

Rupees 

88,385,3 02 
15,205,821 

103,591,123 

II 2020 
Rupees 

46,049,536 
15,291,758 

61.341,294 

Fair value sensitivity a nalysis for fixed rate instruments 

The Company does not account for any fixed rate· llnanctal assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss. Therefore. a change in interest rate at the balance sheet dute would not affect profit or loss of the 
Company. 

(c) Other price risk 

Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or fu ture cash flows of a financial instruments will 
fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other tha n those arising from interes t rate r isk or currency risk). 
Whether those changes are caused by facto rs specific co Lhe individual fi nancial instruments or its iss uer, or 
factors affecting all similar financial insLru rne nts traded in the market. The Company is not exposed to equity 
price risk as its investments in eq uity s ecurities are recorded at cost and not equity method of accounting. 

32.4 Fair va lue of financial instruments 

The carrying values of t he financial assets and financial liabililies approximate their fair values. Fair value is the 
amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a li<\bili ty settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an 
arm's length transaction. 

For working captLal requirements and capital expenditure, the Company primarily relies on short term borrowings 
and internally generated cash fl ows . 

32. 5 Financial instru ments by categories 

Assets as per bala nce sheet 
Long term deposits 
Trade debts 
Other receivables 
Short term investments 
Bank balances 

Liabilities as per balance sheet 
Trade and oLher payables 

financial instruments by categories 

Assets a s per bala nce s hee t 
Long term deposits 
Trade receivables 
Other receivables 
Short term investments 
Bank balances 

2021 
Cash a nd 

loans and 
cash Total 

eq uivalents 
advances 

------------·······(Ru pees)·················· · 

15,205.821 
88,385,302 

103,591,123 

Cash and 
cash 

eq uivale nts I 

4.311,240 4,311,240 
9,988,702 9,988,702 

15,205,821 
88,385,302 

14,299.942 117,89 1,065 

20 20 

Loa ns and 
a dvances 

2021 

Financial Liabilities 
a t amor tized cost 

Rupees 

50,293,432 

Total 

-· · ····- ----------·(Rupees)·· ················· 

4,732.528 4,732,528 
12,465,457 12,465,457 

189,358 189,358 
15,291,758 15,291,758 
46,370,840 46,370,840 
61,662.598 17.387.343 79,049,941 

I 
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2020 

Liabilities as per balance sheet 

Trade and other payables 

Financial Liabilities 

at amortized cost 
Rupees 

48,461,361 

32.6 fair Value Measurement 

Non Recurring Fair Value Measurements ZOZl 
Rs 

Property, plant and equipment 1,009,590,905 

Valuation techniques and inputs used 

The group has engaged an external, independent and qualified valuer to determine the fair value of the Property Plant and 
Equipment They have determined the fair value by using Marlwt based approach as descnbect in !FRS 13. 

The inputs used to develop those measurements are Purchase date, Useiul life of asset. Present condition, location and Market 
value of the similar items. 

Level of the fair value hierarchy 
Quotcd prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identicai asset~ or li<~bilities (Ievell). 
·Inputs other than quoted prices included within Ievell that are observable for the asset or liability, 
either directly (i.e .. as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived fro1~ prices) (level 2). 
·Inputs for the assets o1·liabilities that are not based on observable market data (i.e., unobservable 
inputs e.g. estimated future ca~h nows) (level J). 

32.7 Capital risk management 

The Company's objectives when managing capitnl <~rc to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a going 
concern in order to provide return for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain healthier 
capital ratios in order to support its business and me~x im i?..e shareholders value. The Company manages its capital 
structure and makes adjustments to it. in the light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital 
structure, the company may adjust dividend payments to the shareholders, return on capital to shareholders or issue 
new shares. 

33. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES 

The aggregate amounts charged in the accounts for the remuneration, including all benefits, to the Chief Executive, 
Directors and Executives including key management personnel of the Company were as follows: 

2021 2020 
Chief 

I 
Chief 

I Executive Directors Executive Directors 
Ofl1cer Officer 

Managerial remuneration 2,099,023 
Contribution to provident fund 210,007 
Housing am! utilities 1.450,365 
Medical reimbursements 209,902 
fuel and Mobile Allowance 220,947 

4,190,244 

Number of persons 1 8 1 8 



TECHNOLOGY UPGRADATION AND SKILL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
(A Company registe1·ed under section 42 ofthe Companies Act, 2017) 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 

Managerial remuneration 
Contribution to provident fund 
Vehicle allowance 
Medical allowance 
Fuel ami Mobile Allowance 

Number of persons 

34. PROVIDENT FUND 

2021 

Executives 

11,346,963 
769,034 

1,600,000 
769,034 

1,965.000 
16,530,031 

5 

2020 

Executives 

11,474,217 
769.034 

1,680,000 
769.034 

1.650.400 
16,350,605 

5 

The Company has maintained an employee provident fund and investments out of provident fund have been made in 
accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the Companies Acl 2017{previously Companies Ordinance. 1984) and 
the rules formulated for this purpose. The salient information of the f~tnd is as follows : 

Size of the fund 
Cost of i1westment made 
Percentage of investment made 
Pair value of investment 

34.1 Breakup of investment 

Note 

34.1 

2021 

._":""""R_~_,~'":!":"~-s~_.l .. l ~-R-~_,~~~!":"~-s~_. 
(unaudited) (unaudited) 

21,860,939 20,611,429 
17,000,000 10,000,000 

78% 49% 
17,000,000 10,000,000 

2020 

I 
Investment as I Investments o;, f . f 

(Rupees) o o stz.e o 
the fund 

Investments 
(Rupees) !

Investment as I 
% of size of the 

fund 

Bank balance in schedule bank 17,000,000 

35. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 

The number of employees at the year end were as follows: 

·TUSDEC 
·Projects 

The average number of employees during the year were as rollows: 

·TUSDEC 
·Projects 

78% ==1=0:!,,0=0=0;!:,0=0=0= 

105 
45 

150 

113 
45 

158 

120 
44 

164 

126 
42 

168 

49% 



TECHNOLOGY UPGRADATION AND SKILL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY 
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36. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION 

:J.D (\jl) vi)J>J),i-1 · ).t- 2 I 
These financial statements were authorized for ISSuE:' on . __ by the Uoard of Directors of the Company. 

37. CORRESPONDING FI GURES 

Corresponding figures have been re-arranged or reclasslt)ed wherever necessary, for better and fair presentation. 
liowever, no significant reclass ificarion I restatement have been made in these fin ancial statements. 

38. GENERAL 

Figures in these financia l statements have been rounded off to the nearest rupee, unless otherwise stt1ted. 

l 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

M ---


